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          2  spoke with Ms. Bellows, I don't know whether she's

          3  still here, I spoke with Callahan, and I told them

          4  that I will be asking federal Judge Roberts to hold

          5  them in contempt and the Regional Administrator if

          6  they don't show up, because they are in violation of

          7  a temporary restraining order.

          8                 Are you guys going to show up, sir?

          9  He doesn't know. Nobody to this day, including

         10  Callahan, who is here testifying, knows to this day

         11  whether they're going to comply with a judge's

         12  order. So nothing has changed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With respect to

         14  what? I kind of lost that.

         15                 MR. KAUFMAN: With respect to

         16  testifying at the Ombudsman Investigative Hearings,

         17  so we can get to the bottom of finding out what's

         18  going on and get this thing fixed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And there's one

         20  on Monday, right? And there's one Monday, right?

         21                 MR. KAUFMAN: There's one Monday,

         22  starting at 11:30 at the Federal Court House.

         23                 Now, you know, I like those old 1950s

         24  TV shows, and I like I Love Lucy and Desi had a

         25  great saying, "Splain this to me, Lucy." And that's
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          2  what we're trying to get answers to - splain this to

          3  me, Lucy. And for the first time in the history of

          4  our investigations from Idaho to Florida, from Ohio

          5  to California, Pennsylvania, all over the country,

          6  the first time the EPA officials involved don't want

          7  to show up and splain this to me, Lucy.

          8                 Now, I can't force them. Luckily

          9  there is legislation that has bipartisan support in

         10  the House and the Senate, to give us subpoena power

         11  so we can haul them in and Congressman Nadler is one

         12  of the sponsors of that legislation.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: To give the

         14  Ombudsman --

         15                 MR. KAUFMAN: To give the Ombudsman

         16  power to subpoena these people.

         17                 Let's go forward. What can we do

         18  today? You have to decide whether you want the City

         19  of New York to reinvent the wheel, or whether you

         20  want the federal government to do its job.

         21                 If you want the City of New York to

         22  reinvent the wheel and create a superstructure that

         23  can fully respond, then you'll get started doing

         24  what the federal government could start doing

         25  tomorrow.
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          2                 If you have no choice, then you have

          3  no choice. If the federal government had not been

          4  pulled off the case, and I don't know who pulled

          5  them off, but I hope we find it, right now there

          6  wouldn't be any hearings, you know why? Because

          7  there wouldn't be any contamination in the

          8  apartments, there wouldn't be any contamination from

          9  those scaffolds that they pulled down, there

         10  wouldn't be any contamination at the schools,

         11  because the kids probably wouldn't be in the schools

         12  if they wanted to keep that barge there. Someone

         13  pulled the feds out. Someone pulled the feds out.

         14                 So, now we are in many ways starting,

         15  as if it was September 14th, and on top of that, the

         16  Administrator of the Environmental Protection

         17  Agency, falsely told the citizens of New York, the

         18  air is safe, and the insurance company said, because

         19  we've got that testimony at our hearings, and the

         20  insurance company says, well, go back to that

         21  apartment that's got asbestos and lead dust, because

         22  EPA says it's safe. And then the Chancellor of the

         23  school, the School Board, what's his name - Levy, O

         24  Levy I call him - O Levy says send the kids back

         25  because the EPA says it's safe. Well, it's not safe.
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          2  It's not safe.

          3                 Those schools are on a major truck

          4  route, taking hazardous materials onto a barge, they

          5  get cleaned and they get recontaminated.

          6                 If you want to keep the barge going

          7  and you want to keep the trucks going, either get

          8  the kids out of there or clean them every day, and

          9  don't let the kids play outside.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry,

         11  clean what everyday, the trucks?

         12                 MR. KAUFMAN: No, the schools.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The schools,

         14  okay.

         15                 MR. KAUFMAN: And don't let the kids

         16  play outside.

         17                 Now, I've heard, this is hearsay,

         18  I've asked for declarations on this from parents,

         19  I've asked, are the kids being allowed to play

         20  outside when those trucks are going by and the barge

         21  is working? And they said, oh, no, the Chancellor

         22  said the kids aren't going to go outside. Well, they

         23  are outside. They are allowed to be outside playing,

         24  and there's no program to identify children with

         25  asthma, immunity problems or whatever, they have to
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          2  go outside.

          3                 I've gotten calls from stock brokers

          4  on the Stock Exchange, calling me concerned about

          5  their health, but more important, don't worry about

          6  me, they're concerned about the kids. They're

          7  concerned about the kids.

          8                 I'm getting calls from federal

          9  government employees who work down there. I can't

         10  use their names because I have to protect them.

         11  They're concerned about their health, and their

         12  concerned about the children.

         13                 I don't know what it's going to take,

         14  if the federal government is not going to do its job

         15  and continue to let New York City go it alone,

         16  something they didn't allow the fish in Alaska to

         17  do, then you're going to have to reconstitute and do

         18  what the federal government does, and it's going to

         19  take you a lot of time. You don't have the

         20  infrastructure and the expertise or the capital to

         21  duplicate what the federal government has. It will

         22  take you a year or two just to get something going

         23  at best. There's $20 billion that the President gave

         24  to New York and he promised more. Get that money to

         25  go for true clean-up. Get your Mayor to do something
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          2  about that.

          3                 Now, if you guys want to find out

          4  why, I don't have subpoena power. You have subpoena

          5  power. I'll be happy to work with you from the

          6  bottom up to start investigating the City and work

          7  my way up and we'll find out why. If you want to do

          8  that, I'll make you that offer, because I know the

          9  right questions to ask, and I know who to ask.

         10                 But you've got to get your hands on

         11  about 2 billion, and I think that's a good number. I

         12  think the Congressman threw out a good number, based

         13  on my expertise, I think $2 billion will get you

         14  going, and you've got to keep people who have a

         15  financial conflict of interest, out of the game.

         16  That means Christie Todd Whitman, who has a

         17  financial conflict of interest with the insurance

         18  companies, that means the chancellor of the school

         19  who has a financial conflict of interest with the

         20  insurance companies. You've got to get them out of

         21  the game. You've got to enforce those conflict of

         22  interest laws because there's a lot of money at

         23  stake.

         24                 Travelers Insurance saved tens of

         25  millions of dollars because Christie Todd Whitman,
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          2  who has a conflict of interest, said it's safe and

          3  everyone goes back. You've got to get people who

          4  have conflict of interest out of the game.

          5                 I don't know what to tell you what to

          6  do. I really don't. I wouldn't know how to handle

          7  this if I was in your position and the federal

          8  government that has the infrastructure said you're

          9  on your own. I guess I would try to get the Mayor

         10  and the Governor to ask the President to let the

         11  government do its job. And then to appropriate at

         12  least $2 billion from that 20 billion to do that

         13  job.

         14                 I don't know what else to do, because

         15  I cannot perceive of the City of New York trying to

         16  duplicate in any reasonable amount of time the

         17  federal infrastructure that's in place and has

         18  handled these kinds of things. This is not a unique

         19  case. This is a by the numbers case, just more

         20  people instead of a lot of fish, it's a lot of

         21  people, but it's a very routine case, and whoever

         22  said that we've never seen anything like that before

         23  is full of it. It's easy to handle.

         24                 I'm not saying that it can be fixed,

         25  you know, in a month, but if the on-scene
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          2  coordinators hadn't have been pulled, and we had

          3  followed the National Contingency Plan, we wouldn't

          4  be having this hearing.

          5                 That's all I have to say. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you, Mr. Kaufman.

          8                 MR. KAUFMAN: I just want to make one

          9  comment.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. KAUFMAN: I will doubt that my

         12  comments will appear in the New York Times or any of

         13  the major newspapers that take major advertising

         14  from the real estate interests, and I want to speak

         15  to that issue.

         16                 I have always said that the United

         17  States government should give the same financial

         18  help and indemnification help to the businesses and

         19  the building owners as we gave to the air lines.

         20                 We gave indemnification to the

         21  airlines, and we also gave direct financial help

         22  immediately. And the airlines had contributory

         23  negligence to the attack. The building owners, the

         24  businesses, the citizens, had no contributory

         25  negligence.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            309

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 So, I think we should at least

          3  consider, as a matter of national policy, giving the

          4  same level of benefits to the building owners, to

          5  the businesses, to the citizens, as we gave to the

          6  airlines who had contributory negligence.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Kaufman, you

          8  had indicated that $2 billion ought to get us

          9  started, could you just give us like a two or

         10  three-point action plan as to what that $2 billion

         11  would do?

         12                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, I think if you go

         13  with the OSHA letter, by the Assistant Secretary of

         14  Labor, that you have to assume all this dust is

         15  asbestos-contaminated material, and of course, it

         16  has got other things and asbestos in it, for those

         17  of you who are not aware of it, every computer has

         18  four pounds of lead in it. The CPUs. Do you how many

         19  computers were in the World Trade Center? A lot of

         20  computers, so there's a lot of lead there.

         21                 Mercury, the little bit of mercury in

         22  a fluorescent lamp - do you know how many

         23  fluorescent lamps were in there? I can go on and on

         24  and on.

         25                 So, we should start the remediation.
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          2  We should use the money to fund remediating the

          3  businesses and the apartment buildings, and you have

          4  to do a building at a time. You can't just do part

          5  of a building. We had testimony here, we had

          6  testimony at our ombudsman hearing that if one

          7  apartment owner does not clean their apartment in a

          8  whole building, the risk of recontamination occurs.

          9  So the government has to do a major clean-up program

         10  and pay for it.

         11                 We have contractors in place who can

         12  do that work. We do it all the time, all over the

         13  country.

         14                 Now, once you start doing the

         15  remediation, then you start, first in the close-in

         16  zone you remediate first and don't test. Then as you

         17  get farther out, then you start doing the testing,

         18  and as the Congressman described, until you start to

         19  hit steady state. And you do that by the numbers.

         20  That's not just inside of buildings, it's not just

         21  inside apartments, it's roofs, you've got

         22  scaffolding up all around Wall Street. Well, that

         23  scaffolding is loaded with dust. When you pull that

         24  scaffolding down, as they do, dust goes everywhere.

         25  And you have to retest, too, after awhile, to see if

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            311

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  there is recontamination, because you might have to

          3  clean more than once.

          4                 And you've got to stop pretending

          5  that the schools are safe. Because it's not rocket

          6  science, you don't put air intake for a school next

          7  to a hazardous waste transfer station, and the barge

          8  is a hazardous waste transfer station.

          9                 And I apologize if I sound a little

         10  angry, but we've been doing this stuff for 25 years,

         11  and it's like everyone lost their brain cells and is

         12  pretending this is something new. This is not new.

         13  And I would like to request a copy of the transcript

         14  because I do want to see the statements that the

         15  previous panel made under oath.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure. If you

         18  just give Judith, who is the Counsel to the Health

         19  Committee, your contact information, we will make

         20  sure as soon as we get the transcript that we'll

         21  send it out to you.

         22                 MR. KAUFMAN: Yes, I was notified by

         23  the Criminal Division of the Justice Department that

         24  they have opened up a criminal case against Christie

         25  Todd Whitman on the World Trade Center case and the
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          2  other cases of her conflict of interest, and so I

          3  want to, in keying off of that, also find

          4  specifically the specific false statements that were

          5  made to the Council under oath as it might relate to

          6  that case.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

          8  Quinn.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         10                 Mr. Kaufman, you said that the only

         11  way that the children and the teachers and the

         12  administrators should be in the schools is that if

         13  at the end of every day the schools are cleaned and

         14  if the children and the staff stay inside --

         15                 MR. KAUFMAN: Correct.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: When the trucks

         17  are moving back and forth. Could you clean a school

         18  that quickly? I mean, is that actually possible?

         19                 MR. KAUFMAN: No. I mean, I'm not even

         20  sure that for example Stuyvesant was fully cleaned.

         21  There are things -- I went through it with some of

         22  the parents, what was done and what was not done, I

         23  don't even think it's been fully cleaned, has it?

         24  Even once?

         25                 PARTICIPANTS FROM THE AUDIENCE: No.
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          2                 MR. KAUFMAN: No. So, we can't even

          3  get Stuyvesant cleaned once. And you've got the

          4  public relations mechanism out there, spending

          5  taxpayer dollars, taxpayers who spend their children

          6  to schools spend their money brainwashing them to

          7  think that everything is honky-dory and the burden

          8  of proof, frankly, is to prove safety, and that

          9  burden of proof has not been met by the chancellor

         10  of the schools. What has been met is a PR machine

         11  that ultimately is providing false information to

         12  the public, and it's not right. It's not right. It's

         13  not right whether it's done in New York, it wasn't

         14  right when it was done in Love Canal, it wasn't

         15  right when it was done in the former Soviet Union.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you respond

         17  to the agencies in the first panel, one of the many

         18  things they said was that they don't have an indoor

         19  air standard that exists, so they can only use the

         20  outdoor standard to judge everything by; can you

         21  respond to that?

         22                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, first of all, we

         23  set clean-up levels at hazard sites all over the

         24  country where people live, where people work, et

         25  cetera, where children are, and set those, we have
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          2  certain guidelines that we use, we've been using

          3  them in Superfund sites all over the country for the

          4  last 20 years. So, I have to see the specific

          5  statement to see whether it's a misrepresentation or

          6  an actual falsehood. If it's a falsehood, then that

          7  goes on my list that we'll request criminal

          8  prosecution. If it was made by a City official, I

          9  will request it of Mr. Morgenthau. If it was made by

         10  a federal official, I'll request that prosecution

         11  made by the Attorney General.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It sounds like

         13  what you are saying, though, is that in a situation

         14  like this there are set, you know --

         15                 MR. KAUFMAN: EPA sets standards for

         16  remediation all the time at sites.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: On an ongoing

         18  basis?

         19                 MR. KAUFMAN: Been doing it for over

         20  20 years. They're doing it longer than the kids have

         21  been alive in the schools. It's routine.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: During the

         23  panel, and I don't know the exact words of the whole

         24  criminal thing, I'm not commenting on it, but

         25  certainly what I took from the panel was a lot of
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          2  our hands are tied because we don't have these

          3  standards and it will take an incredibly long time

          4  to develop them --

          5                 MR. KAUFMAN: It's malarky.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          7                 MR. KAUFMAN: It's malarky.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So there is a

          9  kind of --

         10                 MR. KAUFMAN: We have procedures that

         11  do that all the time in hazard sites around the

         12  country. And let me make one other point. This site

         13  should not be a Superfund site. It will be

         14  counterproductive for this site to be handled under

         15  the Superfund bureaucracy.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Why?

         17                 MR. KAUFMAN: Because it will take too

         18  long to deal with things, it will also give a stigma

         19  to the area.

         20                 The Superfund bureaucratic process,

         21  and litigation process that falls off of that, would

         22  be counterproductive.

         23                 This should be handled like an

         24  emergency response case.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is that what
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          2  the Exxon Valdez case was?

          3                 MR. KAUFMAN: Correct. Exxon Valdez

          4  was not a Superfund site.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It was

          6  emergency response?

          7                 MR. KAUFMAN: That's correct.

          8                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Christine, can I

          9  interject for a moment?

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         11                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Just to expand

         12  for a moment on your question what Mr. Kaufman said

         13  a moment ago.

         14                 The Code of Federal Regulations,

         15  Section 300.400, Subsection 8D, reads as follows:

         16                 "Entry and Access.

         17                 1) For purposes of determining the

         18  need for response, or choosing or taking response

         19  action, or otherwise enforcing the provisions of

         20  CERCLA, EPA or the appropriate federal agency and

         21  the state or political subdivision operating

         22  pursuant to a contract or a cooperative agreement

         23  under CERCLA section 104D1, has the authority to

         24  enter any vessel, facility, establishment, or other

         25  place, property or location" -- so they're talking
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          2  about indoors, obviously -- "described in paragraph

          3  D sub 2 of this section, and conduct, complete,

          4  operate and maintain any response actions authorized

          5  by CERCLA or these regulations."

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So that's

          7  pretty clear.

          8                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I would think so.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You raised the

         10  Exxon Valdez case, which I would think is very

         11  interesting in some way sort of parallel.

         12                 MR. KAUFMAN: Very parallel. So is the

         13  Chernoble case.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It would be

         15  useful, I think, and probably best after the hearing

         16  I would like to follow up with you, because it would

         17  be interesting to almost make a chart that kind of

         18  said we did this here and we've done this here, to

         19  really see that kind of mapped out.

         20                 You know, I was very impacted by your

         21  statement about what we did for the animals.

         22                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, I think it's a

         23  good idea to take care of fish.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: As do I. As do

         25  I.
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          2                 MR. KAUFMAN: I'm not saying we should

          3  have abrogated our responsibility to the fish of

          4  Alaska, but I think the people of New York, in my

          5  mind, are at least as important as the fish in

          6  Alaska.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But you would

          8  be available to do that kind of follow-up?

          9                 MR. KAUFMAN: Sure, I'll help you any

         10  way I can.

         11                 I'll tell you, we've got a hearing

         12  Monday, and I've got to make a bunch of phone calls,

         13  but maybe we can have a colloquy, you know, if we

         14  don't have time now --

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, another

         16  point.

         17                 MR. KAUFMAN: -- Maybe at another

         18  point.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.

         20                 MR. KAUFMAN: Because I still have to

         21  line up more witnesses.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.

         23                 Alan.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Yes, I will

         25  just very briefly thank you. You made your offer of
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          2  assisting the Council during our colloquy that your

          3  testimony at the hearing you conducted, the first

          4  one of the Federal Court House --

          5                 MR. KAUFMAN: I will make a statement

          6  with that regard. I will tell you that if you ask me

          7  to help you and offer your subpoena power so that we

          8  can work together, you're going to see a lot of

          9  bureaucrats in the City, State and federal

         10  government start to hop to real fast, I'll tell you

         11  that right now.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay. I assure

         13  you, we will follow up on that offer.

         14                 Let me just ask you for some -- do

         15  you have five minutes?

         16                 MR. KAUFMAN: I've got time. Mecasa

         17  sucasa (phonetic) not that fast. Go ahead.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Because we

         19  also have to hear from some other witnesses, I'll

         20  very briefly -- first, Dr. Chatfield, the fiber that

         21  you observed when you measured the apartments you

         22  testified about earlier, if those apartments have

         23  not to this date been professionally cleaned with

         24  all which that entails, the HEPA vacuum cleaners and

         25  the thorough removal, where would those fibers be
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          2  today?

          3                 DR. CHATFIELD: They'll still be on

          4  the surfaces. They may not be on the original

          5  surfaces, and, of course, it depends whether

          6  somebody has been living there.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Assuming

          8  someone has moved back?

          9                 DR. CHATFIELD: Assuming that somebody

         10  has moved back, then they'll still be on surfaces,

         11  they'll be generally floating around in the air with

         12  all the disturbances that go on during normal

         13  living. Somebody does a vacuum cleaning job, it will

         14  simply redistribute the material, it will land on

         15  everything, and, of course, the person doing the

         16  vacuuming will breathe some of it in. So, gradually

         17  I guess it will all go into a lung.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You preempted

         19  my next question. Even if they vacuumed and dusted

         20  and wiped, it's still hanging around in one place or

         21  another.

         22                 DR. CHATFIELD: A regular vacuum

         23  cleaner it just goes straight through the bag.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: The fibers

         25  don't just evaporate?
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          2                 DR. CHATFIELD: No.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Now, your

          4  measurements and your observations when you were in

          5  apartments, you did not have access to getting into

          6  air ducts or air vents, but based on what you saw in

          7  the apartments, could you extrapolate as to the

          8  likelihood of the presence of fiber in building air

          9  systems, ducts, air conditioners, internal air

         10  circulating systems?

         11                 DR. CHATFIELD: I would imagine it was

         12  deposited throughout the air conditioning system and

         13  all the duct work.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And if it was

         15  a central system it would be throughout?

         16                 DR. CHATFIELD: The same thing.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: So, therefore,

         18  the type of thorough cleaning that you advised needs

         19  to take place within apartments should also take

         20  place within those ducts and systems, as well as in

         21  public areas?

         22                 DR. CHATFIELD: Absolutely.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay.

         24                 Then to Mr. Kaufman, and to Congress

         25  Member Nadler, help us out here a little bit.
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          2  Assuming, I was a little concerned when I heard you

          3  say that the City doesn't have the infrastructure of

          4  the EPA, and we know that's true, but assuming the

          5  EPA is not going to step up to the plate, and we

          6  were to craft legislation hypothetically directing

          7  the City to do A, B, C immediately, what would the A

          8  and B be?

          9                 MR. KAUFMAN: It would be what's in

         10  the National Contingency Plan. Congressman Nadler

         11  laid it out in his paper. You would basically

         12  replicate the national contingency plan rather than

         13  trying to reinvent it.

         14                 Wouldn't you agree, Jerry?

         15                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Yes. I think that

         16  the people who wrote the National Contingency Plan,

         17  who wrote the CERCLA 20 years ago did a very fine

         18  job, and if the City can't depend on the federal

         19  government and has to reinvent the wheel, the wheels

         20  are already invented, you could almost take it

         21  verbatim from the federal law and write a City law

         22  based on it.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And Dr. Levin

         24  in his testimony seemed to feel that the Department

         25  of Health would be equipped if it were empowered and
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          2  financed to undertake, or to oversee and/or

          3  undertake the measurement of remediation; do you

          4  have any reason to agree or disagree with that

          5  assessment?

          6                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, I think Dr. Levin

          7  is a fine doctor, but I think his expertise in --

          8  this is not medical work. I wouldn't tell Dr. Levin

          9  how to do an operation on someone's lungs, and I

         10  think this type of work, he's not an expert in this

         11  field at all. I mean, this requires a sophisticated

         12  engineering management-type activities, and also

         13  legal activities as it relates to liability.

         14                 We went through all this, and I would

         15  like to thank Congressman Nadler for Ataboy

         16  (phonetic) for my colleagues over the years and

         17  maybe a little bit on me, for putting together this

         18  program, because it is a good program. But it

         19  requires levels of expertise and engineering and

         20  law, public health, et cetera, that has to be pulled

         21  together, and that's ultimately what was done to set

         22  up the infrastructure.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Well, see,

         24  I'll conclude on this note.

         25                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Councilman, if I
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          2  may? I don't know that DOH knows anything about

          3  apartment remediation, and I'm not sure which, if

          4  any, City departments do, I think the City, if it

          5  doesn't have the expertise, and it may in some

          6  departments, it may have individuals with that

          7  expertise who can hire the expertise, if it has to.

          8  And the National Remediation Plan is a good model to

          9  base the City law on, if you have to base a City law

         10  on it. I saw Joel Kupferman, who is an expert on

         11  this, there shaking his head when you were asking

         12  about did the City agency, did DOH have the

         13  expertise, but you could vest the responsibility in

         14  some City agency and command the hiring of the

         15  appropriate expertise, and qualify with what

         16  expertise that is.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Well, thanks

         18  for that clarification. I guess that's what I was

         19  driving at. Not that we have built in today the

         20  experts and the people to go out and do it, but if,

         21  and I'll conclude on this note --

         22                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: There may be such

         23  people in the City Administration scattered

         24  throughout various agencies, I don't know.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But I guess we
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          2  could put all our energies into lobbying the federal

          3  government to do what we agree they should do, or we

          4  could put our energies, or we could continue to do

          5  that, but at the same time, push for the City to go

          6  out and hire the expertise and get the job started.

          7                 MR. KAUFMAN: That's not trivial to

          8  set up our system, and we have a lot more money than

          9  you guys do in the City, because we print it in

         10  Washington. See, you guys don't have the printing

         11  press up here.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But for $2

         13  billion.

         14                 MR. KAUFMAN: Well, $2 billion will

         15  get you started, but let me tell you, it still takes

         16  time to build the infrastructure. You've got to hire

         17  the people, et cetera. The on-scene coordinator

         18  system that we set up to handle these emergencies

         19  was not created in three months, and we print the

         20  money. So, I don't want to give you the false

         21  impression or the citizens, that three months from

         22  now if you pass some legislation that's signed by

         23  the Mayor, that three months later you're going to

         24  have that infrastructure in place, because you're

         25  not. It takes a lot of time. It's not trivial to
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          2  hire people and to set up structures to do that.

          3  It's not trivial, trust me. I've been in this

          4  business, I was in the air force during the war, and

          5  I helped create EPA, it takes time to do this.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Mr. Chair, I

          7  would like to follow up on these points, either

          8  later today or at a different setting. I don't want

          9  to stand in the way of Dr. Goldschmitt and Kathryn

         10  Freed, as well as the other witnesses, who I know

         11  need to proceed immediately.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         13  very, very much. I don't want to take too much time,

         14  but I just want to thank you for staying here for so

         15  many hours. Your testimony has been very

         16  illuminating and very, very helpful, and we look

         17  forward to working with you in the weeks and months

         18  to come, and I hope to see you Monday.

         19                 Do you just want to make one more

         20  announcement about your hearing?

         21                 MR. KAUFMAN: The second investigative

         22  hearing for the Ombudsman Office on the World Trade

         23  Center Hazardous Waste Site will start 11:30 a.m.,

         24  at the Federal Court House, 500 Pearl Street, 9th

         25  Floor, ceremonial courtroom.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            327

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Thank you, Congressman. Thank you,

          5  Doctor.

          6                 I would like to announce the next

          7  panel. As a matter of fact, I will announce the next

          8  two panels. The Honorable Kathryn Freed, Maureen

          9  Silverman, Marilena --

         10                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Christodoulou.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Yes, like you

         12  said.

         13                 And Dr. Goldschmitt.

         14                 Now, the doctor has to attend to

         15  patients, to hopefully we will put him on first. I

         16  would like him to go on first.

         17                 And that panel will be followed by

         18  Eric Goldstein, Marjorie Clarke, David Newman, Joel

         19  Kupferman, John Glass.

         20                 We've ordered sleeping bags, too. So,

         21  we're prepared.

         22                 Okay, if people could sort of settle

         23  down a little bit, we want to hear this testimony.

         24                 Okay, we have to do the oath thing.

         25                 Judith, if you would be so kind as to
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          2  do the honors with the oath.

          3                 MS. MACFARLANE: Do you swear or

          4  affirm that the testimony you're about to give is

          5  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          6  truth?

          7                 MS. FREED: I do.

          8                 MS. SILVERMAN: I do.

          9                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: I do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Doctor, if you could state your name

         13  for the record.

         14                 Why don't we have each member of the

         15  panel just identify themselves, and then we will go

         16  to the doctor, who will proceed with his testimony.

         17                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: I'm Dr. David

         18  Goldschmitt. I am the Director of the Emergency

         19  Department at NYU Downtown Medical Center.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         21                 Just identify yourself for the

         22  record.

         23                 MS. SILVERMAN: Maureen Silverman, a

         24  resident of Independence Plaza, member of the WTC

         25  Environmental Coalition and Co-chair of the Outreach
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          2  and Education Committee of New York City Coalition

          3  to End Lead Poisoning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 I also would like to ask all the

          6  witnesses to speak directly into the microphone and

          7  speak loudly, if you have to. Because there are

          8  still some people talking in the back, there's

          9  nothing I can do about it. So, let's just shout them

         10  out.

         11                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Marilena

         12  Christodoulou, I'm the President of the Parents

         13  Association at Stuyvesant High School, and I'm here

         14  to represent the five local schools.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 And then someone who needs no

         18  introduction, but do so anyway.

         19                 MS. FREED: Okay. Kathryn Freed,

         20  resident of Independence Plaza, with the Lower

         21  Manhattan Tenants Coalition, and the World Trade

         22  Center Environmental, Emergency Environmental Group,

         23  and former Council Member.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're also a

         25  member of the Task Force that Alan has put together?
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          2                 MS. FREED: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Correct? Okay.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I would add,

          5  long time illustrious member of the City Council.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doctor, please

          7  feel free to proceed with your testimony.

          8                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: Thank you for

          9  allowing me to testify. As I said, I am the Director

         10  of the Emergency Department at NYU Downtown. Being

         11  four blocks from --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you will

         13  please speak up so everyone gets it.

         14                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: I'm sorry.

         15                 Being four blocks from Ground Zero,

         16  this is our neighborhood and we have watched over

         17  the past several months the clinical effect of both

         18  the disaster itself, and the subsequent clean-up

         19  efforts on our patients. It's difficult to trend

         20  overall what this environmental impact has had on

         21  our patient population, because many of them are not

         22  residents of the area but work in the surrounding

         23  communities and live in the surrounding tristate

         24  area, and are seeking their medical care in the

         25  areas where they are living, not working.
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          2                 So, I cannot give you exact figures,

          3  I can only do anecdotal notations of what our

          4  patient population has changed over the past several

          5  months.

          6                 We've seen a rise of approximately 12

          7  percent of cases of respiratory compromise at our

          8  hospital, with a corresponding rise in severity of

          9  disease among the patients that have reported to us.

         10                 If that is representative of the rest

         11  of the hospitals in the area and in the tristate

         12  area, we're talking about a fairly large number of

         13  patients, and as we all are well aware, medical care

         14  is expensive both in its direct costs and in the

         15  cost of loss of wages and productivity.

         16                 It's important to note whether this

         17  area is declared a hazardous material area really

         18  depends on and influences the amount of safeguards

         19  that are put in place for any of the clean-up

         20  efforts. So, it's important for us to define on the

         21  medical side of it what are our risks and what are

         22  the things we are seeing from the present state of

         23  air quality in Lower Manhattan, and it's not one,

         24  but four actual areas of concern. The first being

         25  what people are referring to as asthma, which is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            332

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  actually hyperactive airway disease, the reason that

          3  we differentiate it is that hyperactive airway

          4  diseases in the past and in general temporary, and

          5  in 92 to 98 percent of the population, those asthma

          6  symptoms will go away three to six months after the

          7  irritant or whatever is causing that condition has

          8  been eliminated from the environment.

          9                 The problem that we are running into

         10  now is, though in general only two to eight percent

         11  will go on to a chronic asthma-type picture, no one

         12  has ever been able to do studies on such long-term

         13  chronic exposure, so those statistics may not be

         14  totally representative. We may have actually more

         15  people who go on to a long-term asthma than just the

         16  two to eight percent, and even the two to eight

         17  percent, judging by the number of people living in

         18  Lower Manhattan, is still quite a large number.

         19                 The second patient population at risk

         20  are the ones from irritants causing bronchitis or

         21  pneumonia which people describe as "the World Trade

         22  Center cough." It's more common in persons with

         23  preexisting either pulmonary or cardiac -- heart or

         24  lung compromise. But it can occur in anyone.

         25                 It makes the patient more susceptible
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          2  to either viral illnesses or bacterial illnesses.

          3  That's why people are getting the sinusitises,

          4  pneumonias, bronchitis, because it's roughened the

          5  surface of the airways, so those germs can invade

          6  more easily.

          7                 The condition, again, is temporary,

          8  and will resolve when the contaminants are removed.

          9  But in the meantime, it can be life-threatening to

         10  the patient, or at least result in a costly

         11  hospitalization, if the patient has emphysema,

         12  asthma or any other pre-existing condition.

         13                 The third, which everyone has talked

         14  about a lot today is asbestosis. The important thing

         15  to remember on this is that there is no warning for

         16  the difficulties with asbestos toxicity. It is 20 to

         17  30 years before people will know the extent of any

         18  of the toxicity, and the end physical results, and

         19  there's no way to track that in between. So, it's

         20  important to know whether there is actually a health

         21  risk up front, since we cannot do any testing on the

         22  patient themselves that will tell us that the

         23  patient is getting in trouble.

         24                 And the last one is the heavy metals

         25  and toxins, lead, chromium, mercury, arsenic, et
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          2  cetera, and the toxins, such as the PCBs. None of

          3  these materials are excreted from the body, meaning

          4  that once it goes in, they settle in for the long

          5  haul. They build up, and when they reach a certain

          6  level, or a certain amount of time in the body, they

          7  cause disease. And those diseases could be anything

          8  from cancers, such as lymphomas, to autoimmune

          9  diseases, like lupus, rheumatoid arthritis, chronic

         10  fatigue syndrome, and they can cause birth defects

         11  even in the later pregnancies.

         12                 Basically this is our rationale for

         13  this, is that a clean-up effort that promotes

         14  re-aersolizing, that is --

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: That promotes

         16  what?

         17                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: That promotes

         18  re-aerosolizing or reintroducing the particles into

         19  the air, and is located in a residential community,

         20  lengthens the time of exposure that the residents

         21  have to deal with these lung irritants in their air

         22  quality, and, therefore, raises the amount of

         23  disease that results from it, causes many more

         24  chronic conditions, causes more expensive

         25  hospitalizations. So, our philosophy in the medical
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          2  community is that if you want to keep the cost low,

          3  if people are afraid of the cost of properly

          4  safeguarding, then the lowered costs of not

          5  hospitalizing so many people, and people not missing

          6  days from work will offset the costs of a proper

          7  clean-up.

          8                 That's basically the testimony that's

          9  in my jurisdiction.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doctor, thank

         11  you very much. I deeply appreciate your testimony.

         12                 Are there questions for the doctor?

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Just two very,

         14  very quick questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         16  Gerson.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You were here

         18  earlier for the colloquy, Mr. Kaufman's favorite

         19  term, as to lead, and I'm curious if you have any

         20  thoughts? And I know, Marilena, you will address

         21  this also, but if you have any thoughts as to the

         22  elevated readings of lead that have been reported

         23  near the public schools, near the barge, if you feel

         24  they could just be dismissed as normal New York

         25  background, as one person seemed to indicate, or
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          2  from what you have observed in the hospital, or just

          3  from your general knowledge, do you have any sense

          4  of whether the lead could, in fact, be due to the

          5  ongoing operation?

          6                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: In actuality, my

          7  philosophy on lead in the environment is that the

          8  only way that you're going to assess whether it's a

          9  problem or not is with blood testing with

         10  individuals. And it has to be done in a

         11  representative sample.

         12                 For instance, establishing a grid of

         13  Lower Manhattan taking representative samples from

         14  different distances from Ground Zero, because

         15  environmental samples, if you walk into a building

         16  that has lead paint on the wall, there's a high lead

         17  concentration, it does not necessarily mean it's

         18  going to get into the person. So, we have to, that

         19  testing, which is, unfortunately, more expensive

         20  than it would be to do environmental testing,

         21  meaning blood testing the individual, is necessary

         22  to know whether lead poisoning or any of these heavy

         23  metal toxins is actually occurring.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Under the

         25  current situation would you think testing would be
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          2  called for, or is that too much?

          3                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: I think that there

          4  needs to be some degree of that. Just to establish,

          5  even if they want to do an initial pilot of just a

          6  small sample of the population, that would be

          7  sufficient.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: That would be

          9  helpful?

         10                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: Yes.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Helpful in

         12  terms of guarding against future health risks?

         13                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: Helpful in

         14  determining, if you do a small pilot study and find

         15  that a large percentage of the people within ten

         16  blocks of Ground Zero say, out of that sample

         17  population a lot have lead levels higher than you

         18  expect, or mercury levels higher than the safety

         19  level, then you would have to go on to more

         20  widespread testing.

         21                 If you find that everyone's level in

         22  your sample population is low, then you answered

         23  your question.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: The last

         25  question. The test would be more, would it serve a
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          2  purpose beyond study for the future, as valuable as

          3  that is, could it serve a purpose in terms of

          4  protecting the health of residents continuing to

          5  live down here?

          6                 DR. GOLDSCHMITT: Yes. In actuality,

          7  heavy metal poisoning is one of the few things that

          8  would come out of this environmental exposure that

          9  we can correct. There are chelating agents that you

         10  can give to people to take that metal poisoning out

         11  of the body, so it's definitely a worthwhile thing.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doctor, thank

         14  you very much. We're grateful for your testimony.

         15  And I know you're time is very valuable and it's

         16  very nice to give us so much of it, so thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 We would like to proceed with the

         19  next witness. If it would be okay, could we hear

         20  from Kathryn Freed?

         21                 Okay, we'll hear from Kathryn Freed.

         22  And we have something like 30-something more

         23  witnesses to go, so to the extent that people could

         24  be -- starting with the next panel we will probably

         25  be forced to go to the timer ritual, but we can't
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          2  put that in place like mid-panel, you know.

          3                 So, please proceed, Kathryn. It's a

          4  pleasure to have you here.

          5                 MS. FREED: Thank you very much. And I

          6  appreciate the opportunity. Of course, I was going

          7  to ask if that was a subtle way of telling me to

          8  keep it short.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, no, no, no.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Not you,

         11  Kathryn. We want to hear everything you want to say

         12  because we know it's important.

         13                 MS. FREED: Well, thank you.

         14                 And actually, honestly, most of us

         15  have been going around and doing this, this is

         16  probably my tenth or 15th or something hearing that

         17  I've been at, both on that side and this side, and

         18  to a certain extent, most of the people here today,

         19  at this point it's also like preaching to the choir,

         20  because most of us, we live down here or we work

         21  down here, we've got children in the schools down

         22  here, and, you know, we're experiencing this, and we

         23  know what we're experiencing. And I guess the

         24  frustration level, it's hard to explain how the

         25  frustration level continues and continues to grow,
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          2  as we continue to be ignored, and now it's six

          3  months after the fact, and the most basic things

          4  that we've been asking for since September, and the

          5  same information that we knew in September is the

          6  same information we're hearing now. And certainly

          7  the first panel with the City agencies, I don't even

          8  know why they bothered, because they could have

          9  played back the tapes from the hearings that we had

         10  in November, because we didn't find out anything

         11  new. And they're still using the same excuses.

         12                 And just to follow up on what Dr.

         13  Goldschmitt, I believe, was just saying, if you

         14  think about it, six months later, our government,

         15  who I think has totally abandoned us, in fact, it's

         16  more like we're at war with them at this point, but

         17  they haven't done the slightest thing to test the

         18  health of people living downtown. How difficult is

         19  that? If there is lead in the schools, and it's

         20  interesting, the schools test, and they come back

         21  and they say we have elevated lead levels, or we

         22  have elevated asbestos, or we have elevated

         23  particulate matter levels, well certainly if that's

         24  in the school for the kids who live across the

         25  street or in the very near area, the same
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          2  recontamination that the schools are getting are the

          3  same recontaminations that our homes are getting,

          4  and, yet, nothing has been done. No one has tested

          5  us. In most cases there has been no proper clean up,

          6  and day after day we get recontaminated, like the

          7  schools get recontaminated, if you walk down the

          8  sidewalk -- and by the way, the guy from EPA said we

          9  clean the sidewalks - they have never cleaned the

         10  sidewalks. Not once, not ever. If the sidewalks got

         11  cleaned it was because somebody at a store in the

         12  first level of a building did it, but DEP has not

         13  cleaned the sidewalks. In point of fact, they've cut

         14  way back on even, you know, cleaning the streets.

         15  And that includes over by the barges where you heard

         16  them again today say how they do dust suppressants

         17  and they do X, Y and Z, they are not doing X, Y and

         18  Z, it's scattered at best.

         19                 I mean, the whole situation downtown

         20  is a nightmare, and it's a reoccurring nightmare

         21  that we can't seem to wake up from.

         22                 And the fact that we have been

         23  literally almost tortured by the very governments

         24  that are supposed to be taking care of our health,

         25  and to this date they have not done any of the
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          2  logical things.

          3                 You would think not only would they

          4  test the children in the schools for lead, or other

          5  contaminants, that they would also test some of the

          6  residents in the area. They've never done that. They

          7  haven't tested our apartments. The same dust, and I

          8  know everyone has heard me say this, that came down

          9  on September 11th, is still on my terrace. It is

         10  still on the terraces of most of the apartments

         11  downtown, it is on our windowsills, it's on the

         12  facades of our buildings, because they haven't been

         13  cleaned up.

         14                 When you listened to DOH, and they

         15  were talking about things that they told people to

         16  do, well, early on they were telling people to sweep

         17  the dust off the roofs, sweep it off buildings.

         18                 Since most of us are now experts on

         19  what you're not supposed to do downtown, or what

         20  you're not supposed to do with asbestos or lead or

         21  any of those things, we now know you shouldn't do

         22  that. But when you took an unsuspecting population

         23  and made the decision, whoever made the decision,

         24  that experts in the area who know how to do proper

         25  cleaning and know how to do proper clean-up, were
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          2  not going to do it, but that individual building

          3  owners were supposed to do it, that was a recipe for

          4  disaster that we are now still living with. That

          5  still hasn't been cleaned up, and the more we talk

          6  about this, with nothing being done, what happens is

          7  the frustration level continues to build, and this

          8  is a community that is also looking about going to

          9  court.

         10                 You've heard from Hugh Kaufman, and

         11  the EPA Ombudsman's Office that they are looking to

         12  go to court and bring out and file criminal charges

         13  against Christie Todd Whitman. Well, we're being

         14  forced downtown, since we can't seem to get the

         15  proper kind of response from the very government

         16  that's supposed to take care of us, to do something

         17  similar. Look into lawsuits to see whatever it takes

         18  to start protecting our health, our children's

         19  health, everybody's and even visitors who come into

         20  the district. And it is outrageous, it is beyond,

         21  it's almost beyond saying how horrible it is that we

         22  are still dealing with this.

         23                 Let me just point out a couple of

         24  specific things. I mean, obviously the

         25  recommendations that the Environmental Protection
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          2  Committee, that when we had hearings before, we

          3  still need all those done, they're not being done.

          4                 The medical registry, you know, in

          5  truth it probably doesn't make sense to do testing

          6  anymore, because we pretty much know what's there or

          7  what could be there, it makes more sense that we

          8  would do clean-up. But honestly, for myself, we see

          9  the Lower Manhattan Development Company looking to

         10  give people money to stay downtown for two years,

         11  whether it's 12,000 or 6,000 or whatever.

         12  Personally, keep the money, we don't need transients

         13  downtown. We've already made a commitment to stay in

         14  the community. Instead, give us the medical

         15  registry, give us the clean-up, do what we really

         16  need to make our lives safe and for our health.

         17                 And as far as the question about the

         18  barge, I mean, okay, I'd like to see it go. I wish

         19  it had never started. One of the things, however, I

         20  would think that the Council should follow up on and

         21  demand is that, you know, we talked about this the

         22  other night, we are being told, a number of us, and

         23  in fact, Marilena and myself and another woman met

         24  with OEM and DDC and their consultant to talk about

         25  what can be done about the barge. You know, six
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          2  months later they're still saying maybe we should

          3  put more rubber tires on it so it doesn't make so

          4  much noise. Oh, we'll do dust -- I mean, same stuff

          5  that they haven't done in six months, there's no

          6  reason why they should do it now, or in the next

          7  month or two. But if indeed they are going to be

          8  finished with the debris removal some time in May,

          9  we are terrified of the possibility that they will

         10  then turn around and continue to do additional

         11  rubbish, or you know, removal, and if they do, if

         12  they do the transportation hub and they start

         13  digging that out or do excavation there, that

         14  they're going to bring that out the same place.

         15                 Of if they do excavation to sink West

         16  Street, that it may come out there, or that the

         17  construction will come in where the barge is.

         18  Because it's not just the question of the asbestos

         19  and the lead and everything else that's in the dust

         20  that we get recontaminated with, it's also just the

         21  fact that we have to deal with somewhere between 700

         22  truck trips, diesel truck trips a day going by, and

         23  just earlier this week, the federal government is

         24  talking about how dangerous PM 2.5 slightly smaller

         25  structures are, and that they are equivalent to
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          2  second-hand smoke and carcinogens.

          3                 So, what we would like to see is that

          4  when they did those original contracts, they did it

          5  under emergency provisions, so they suspended the

          6  normal contracting procedure and the normal bidding

          7  procedure, and the dredging procedure, if they do

          8  not end, and do not start to decommission the barge,

          9  when they finish with the debris removal, I would

         10  hope that the Council would demand that they have to

         11  either -- first demand they recommission it, that's

         12  it. You know, we've had enough, we've had more than

         13  enough, but that if they come back and try and do

         14  something else there, that they will have to go

         15  through the rebidding process, and that the

         16  environmental standards, not only the bidding

         17  process, but he environmental standards that they

         18  didn't have to comply with in the first place be

         19  upheld, because they won't be able to meet them and

         20  that way we can get rid of the barge.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Actually, the

         22  environmental standards you're referring to, those

         23  are under which provision?

         24                 Which environmental standards?

         25                 MS. FREED: In other words, they
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          2  basically suspended all the normal environmental

          3  procedures, SECRA and, you know, the whole bit. And,

          4  in fact, they're even looking at that if they try

          5  and speed up 7 World Trade Center, they're also

          6  talking about suspending all the environmental

          7  impact statements, SECRA, all those standards. And

          8  given the fact that we've already been knocked to

          9  heck environmentally and ecologically, we would also

         10  like to see that those standards not be allowed to

         11  be weakened in any way.

         12                 And just very quickly, I just wanted

         13  to point this out. This is an article that appeared

         14  in the Gazette World, and it talks about, it says

         15  "India braces for World Trade Center steel." In

         16  addition to not knowing what's going on and having

         17  no real oversight or no enforcement. If you get an

         18  oversight agency, it's great, but we need an agency

         19  that has enforcement powers, where people don't do

         20  clean-ups. And one of the things that they're

         21  looking at in this -- I know I'm jumping around, but

         22  they said, "The City of New York has decided to sell

         23  175,000 tons of steel scrap from the World Trade

         24  Center." First I'd like to know who decided that,

         25  but the fact that we are now exporting contaminated
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          2  steel throughout the world, you know, is outrageous.

          3  It's like no one is in control of what is going on

          4  at the World Trade Center site, and everything that

          5  comes out of there. And someone has to step in and

          6  be in charge of this.

          7                 Interestingly enough, by the way, in

          8  India they are allowing a greenpeace team to come in

          9  and inspect the thing, and, yet, we've never even

         10  had the same kind of inspection or the same kind of

         11  follow-up here.

         12                 So, what can I say, except that we

         13  hope that you will continue to hold hearings, that

         14  you will argue on our behalf, as I know you have,

         15  but stand up at every single level and demand that

         16  our government, instead of being at war with us,

         17  protect us and do the health registries, do the

         18  clean-ups, and start protecting us and our health.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20                 Thank you very much, Kathryn. Thank

         21  you for your testimony. Thank you for waiting, and

         22  thank you for your many, many years of great service

         23  to this Council, and to this Committee, as well.

         24  Thanks a lot, I appreciate it.

         25                 Now the other witnesses, now I really
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          2  have to start getting serious about going quicker,

          3  I'm sorry.

          4                 MS. CHRISTOUDOULOU: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry about

          6  that. I apologize.

          7                 MS. CHRISTOUDOULOU: My name is

          8  Marilena --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll make it up

         10  to you somehow.

         11                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got to

         13  start moving along. We've got a zillion more

         14  witnesses.

         15                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: I'll try.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: My name is

         19  Marilena Christodoulou. I'm the President of the

         20  Parents Association at Stuyvesant High School, but

         21  I'm here to represent the correlation of the PTAs of

         22  the five local schools, PS 89, IS 89, PS 234, 150

         23  and, of course, Stuyvesant.

         24                 First, on behalf of the 4,500

         25  students, 300 staff members, and 9,000 parents at
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          2  our schools, I want to thank you for holding these

          3  hearings that are of great concern to our community.

          4                 There were a lot of parents here this

          5  morning that had to leave, but they were here, and I

          6  want to tell you, we were all outraged at what we

          7  heard this morning, at some of the statements that

          8  were made. Jerry Nadler addressed some, I'm going to

          9  address some that are outright lies.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, what I

         11  would like is if you could focus your testimony on

         12  those things that we haven't heard already.

         13                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Exactly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And on those

         15  points that other people haven't characterized

         16  already as lies.

         17                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Exactly. I will.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: I will. Because

         20  from our experience we know what they are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Very quickly, the

         24  Board of Education reopened Stuyvesant on October

         25  9th. We were the first school to open. The other
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          2  four schools opened in February, four months later.

          3                 Attached to my testimony is a letter

          4  dated October 10th, from the Department of Health,

          5  Commissioner Neal Cohen, to Board of Education

          6  Chancellor Levy, stating that "the Department of

          7  Health..." -- I'm quoting -- "... assessment of the

          8  air quality in the vicinity of Stuyvesant High

          9  School is acceptable and safe to breathe."

         10                 Thus, we sent our children back to

         11  school in good faith, based on these assurances.

         12                 The letter also states that "air

         13  quality immediately outside of Stuyvesant..." -- and

         14  you can see that immediately outside of Stuyvesant

         15  is right on top of the barge --..."is at safe,

         16  acceptable levels for children."

         17                 Unfortunately, this did not prove to

         18  be the case.  Unfortunately, Stuyvesant has the most

         19  experience from the other schools and our experience

         20  has been problematic. Our children are getting sick.

         21  We are also concerned about the possibility delayed

         22  long-term effects in 20 years from now.

         23                 Environmental conditions in and

         24  around all the five schools continue to pose a

         25  potential threat to our children's health and
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          2  well-being.

          3                 The major problem is the location of

          4  the barge, which you can see on Pier 25, and you can

          5  see the five schools, and also Borough of Manhattan

          6  Community College, and I know there's a student

          7  leader here who is going to talk about BMCC.

          8                 I'm not going to talk about the

          9  barge, you heard enough about the description of the

         10  barge. What I'm going to talk about is the fact that

         11  contaminants from the barge and otherwise are

         12  entering the schools, primarily through the

         13  ventilation systems.

         14                 Results from environmental sampling

         15  conducted by the Board of Education at Stuyvesant,

         16  demonstrate that on more than 50 percent of the

         17  days, and we have a long experience from October 9th

         18  to February 1st, measurements of respirable

         19  particulate matter, the PM 2.5, inside the school,

         20  have exceeded EPA guidelines for children.

         21                 Now, I heard the gentleman from DDC,

         22  and I saw him put a chart up there, or a slide

         23  presentation, whatever it was, and on his

         24  presentation, he indicated the average, and I don't

         25  know what average means, the average PM 2.5 at
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          2  Stuyvesant, was always below regulatory levels. So,

          3  this is absolutely not true, because on the 50

          4  percent of the days where PM 2.5 levels exceeded

          5  regulatory levels inside the school, they also

          6  exceeded it outside the school. So, that statement

          7  up there is absolutely false.

          8                 I want to mention also another

          9  statement made by Bob Avaltroni, the Deputy

         10  Commissioner of DEP. He said that when DEP, every

         11  time that DEP found a spike, that was his statement,

         12  a spike in monitoring contaminants, they did not

         13  reoccupy buildings.

         14                 Now, first of all, I wouldn't

         15  characterize 50 percent of the days as a spike, but

         16  even if we admit that it was a spike, clearly our

         17  building was reoccupied and remained occupied since

         18  October 9th. So, I don't understand this statement.

         19                 The Board of Education upgraded the

         20  filters in the ventilation systems at Stuyvesant at

         21  the end of January, four months after we moved back,

         22  and took similar actions at PS 89, IS 89, PS 150,

         23  and PS 234 prior to reopening these schools.

         24                 However, contaminants are still

         25  entering the schools, after these improved filters
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          2  have been installed.

          3                 And it is clear to us that the close

          4  proximity of the barge to the school is putting our

          5  children at the greater risk of exposure to the

          6  contaminants.

          7                 Now, we have a chart up there. I want

          8  to draw your attention to the first line. The

          9  Stuyvesant Parents Association Environmental

         10  Engineer, Howard Bader, has measured and compared

         11  airborne concentrations of particulate matter at

         12  Ground Zero, and on the north side of Stuyvesant by

         13  the barge, and has consistently found the

         14  particulate matter to be higher at Stuyvesant.

         15                 During the last month, and that's

         16  after most of the fires were out, during the last

         17  month, particulates, which is the PM 2.5 at

         18  Stuyvesant were higher than at Ground Zero on 78

         19  percent, three-quarter of the days. And this is in

         20  the last month, I'm not talking about October or

         21  September.

         22                 At PS 234, on 12 out of the 27 days

         23  in the last month, particulate matter exceeded

         24  regulatory guidelines. And that's also in our chart.

         25                 At PS 89, IS 89, lead is a constant
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          2  problem, and it's right there, and also at

          3  Stuyvesant we have found very high levels of lead in

          4  December, January and February.

          5                 I heard Jessica Leighton of the

          6  Department of Health mention that the guideline on

          7  the sheets that we distributed were wrong, and it

          8  was just incomplete. We indicated that the lead

          9  guideline was 40, whatever, and I recognize that

         10  it's 40 on floors and 250 on windowsills. However,

         11  if you look at our measurements, we have had levels

         12  of 599, so they're way higher than any of these two

         13  guidelines. And as you mentioned, Councilman Gerson,

         14  we also found it on the windowsills on the north

         15  side, you know, facing the barge.

         16                 At PS 89 and IS 89 they also found

         17  elevated levels of fiberglass, dioxin and chromium

         18  on several days during the past month.

         19                 I also want to bring to the Council's

         20  attention that I was informed today by a reporter on

         21  the daily news, that in spite of finding the high

         22  levels of fiberglass and dioxin at PS 89, the Board

         23  of Education, it may be hearsay on my part, but the

         24  Board of Education told the Daily News today that

         25  they will stop monitoring for fiberglass and dioxin.
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          2                 So, I don't know it firsthand, but

          3  that's my understanding.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I hate to

          5  be a creep. I'm going to ask you to summarize your

          6  testimony. Although this is a critically important

          7  aspect of this whole issue, we are pointedly trying

          8  to do like a little bit of a dance around Board of

          9  Ed issues, because we don't have the Board of Ed

         10  here and they were not part of the hearing.

         11                 I think we're getting valuable

         12  insights as to how much work they have to do with

         13  their filters, and suspension of tests and so on. We

         14  don't have anyone here from the Board of Ed. We

         15  don't have anyone here from the Education Committee,

         16  I don't think, and we're pointedly going to do a

         17  little bit of a tap dance around sort of like the

         18  Board of Ed component of this issue.

         19                 It certainly deserves its own big

         20  state-of-the-art, you know, soup to nuts hearing,

         21  which this hearing is not. And, so, I think your

         22  testimony serves to point out that this is a whole

         23  huge aspect of this thing, which certainly needs

         24  full treatment, and it is my hope it will get full

         25  treatment from this Council. And what you say to me,
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          2  you know, does give me great pause, but we kind of

          3  got the idea so-to-speak, and I think this kind of

          4  testimony is best put forward in a venue of people,

          5  you know, from the appropriate Committee of the

          6  Council, and the appropriate agency that could

          7  respond to it, do you know what I mean?

          8                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: I understand it. I

          9  take your point for my last comment, however, the

         10  rest of my testimony had to do with levels of

         11  contamination in the schools. So, I mean it's really

         12  factual data on level of contamination.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would be

         14  happy to take any information that you have. How

         15  about take like the two biggest things that kind of

         16  jump off your testimony, that you just have to tell

         17  us, otherwise you're going to bust. We'll take those

         18  two points, and any other information you would like

         19  to provide to the Committee and to the staff, we

         20  would be happy to receive and share it with the

         21  appropriate committee of the Council and the Board

         22  of Ed.

         23                 So, two more punchy points and we're

         24  going to have to move on.

         25                 And everything that you do submit to
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          2  us will be part of the record of this hearing.

          3                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: I have submitted

          4  it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's the good

          6  news.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Let me maybe

          8  put it this way, and, Mr. Chair, this witness and

          9  other parents have done an admirable job in

         10  collecting data and advocating. We've been to the

         11  Board of Ed and we're all frustrated by the lack of

         12  follow-up, but we will follow-up.

         13                 What would be helpful at this

         14  particular time is to put forward any evidence or

         15  indication of problem areas stemming from outside of

         16  the schools. If you have any information that

         17  indicates something is coming from the barge.

         18                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Our contention is

         19  that all of these contaminants, all of this

         20  contamination that I've testified to, most of it is

         21  coming from the barge.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But any

         23  additional information you have that would indicate

         24  that, that would be helpful for us to hear.

         25                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Well, one of the
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          2  reasons is that on several occasions the EPA

          3  notified me that the EPA has a monitoring station

          4  between the barge and the school, and on several

          5  occasions the EPA notified me that it had monitored

          6  high levels of certain contaminants in outdoor air

          7  at its monitoring station at the barge, between the

          8  barge and the school.

          9                 And these contaminants in recent

         10  months, in January included tetrachlorethane and

         11  niacyanate, and, unfortunately, the EPA has not been

         12  monitoring these contaminants on a continuous basis.

         13  But they were at the barge and the school.

         14                 And all of these contaminants, you

         15  know, were found on the north side of the school,

         16  which faces the barge, and certainly at much higher

         17  levels at PS 89 and IS 89, which are just across

         18  from Stuyvesant.

         19                 And they were not found at PS 150,

         20  which is further away and is surrounded by high

         21  buildings. So, that's one thing.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: They were not

         23  found on the south side?

         24                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Not to the

         25  elevated levels that were found on the north side.
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          2                 So, you know, that's one evidence. I

          3  mean, the barge, there's no reason for me to talk

          4  about the barge. You've heard enough about the

          5  barge.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, one more

          7  point and then the rest, if you could just submit it

          8  for the record.

          9                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Basically I also

         10  want to refer to the incidents of illness amongst

         11  students and faculty members at Stuyvesant, because

         12  we're the only school who has had the experience to

         13  be there for five months. And I want to state that

         14  since the return to Stuyvesant on October 9th, a

         15  number of students and faculty have reported and

         16  exhibited clinically and diagnosable symptoms of

         17  illness.

         18                 Many parents report that their

         19  children have experienced unusual rashes,

         20  nosebleeds, coughing attacks, and chronic sinus and

         21  respiratory problems, including new onset asthma.

         22                 Parents have reported to us several

         23  emergency room visits.

         24                 I also want to put on the record that

         25  I heard Jessica Leighton of the Department of Health
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          2  testify this morning that complaints at Stuyvesant,

          3  you know, illness complaints at Stuyvesant were

          4  higher in October and November, and that complaints

          5  have gone down in January and February. And I want

          6  to state unequivocally that she has no basis for

          7  this statement.

          8                 Neither the Board of Education, nor

          9  the Department of Health have conducted an

         10  epidemiological study of the students at Stuyvesant.

         11  And I can state that with full confidence because

         12  nobody has asked for parental consent, which is

         13  needed to conduct a study of minors.

         14                 So, there has been absolutely no

         15  study, and it's a baseless statement to say that

         16  there is no sickness. It may very well be the case

         17  the sickness has gone down, but we do not know it

         18  for a fact.

         19                 And what we want is very clear, and

         20  I'll take it a step further than Kathryn did, and

         21  the barge operation on Pier 25 should be relocated

         22  away from the schools and the residential community

         23  as soon as possible, now. And definitely prior to

         24  the start of redevelopment.

         25                 And City agencies should act
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          2  immediately to containerize the debris carted to the

          3  barge, to require use of low-sulfur fuel for diesel

          4  trucks and equipment, including throughout the

          5  rebuilding operations.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This has been

          7  called for already, just so you know.

          8                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: Yes. And to use

          9  Pier 6 during school hours.

         10                 And I also want to add here that when

         11  we met last Monday --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Quickly, please.

         13                 MS. CHRISTODOULOU: With Deputy

         14  Commissioner of OEM, Michael Berkowitz, and Bill

         15  Coty, we asked them about the low-sulfur fuel and

         16  you heard today testimony that it's being

         17  considered. We were told that it's not being

         18  considered because the refueling station in New

         19  Jersey is just too inconvenient, was the word they

         20  used, and that therefore it was not being

         21  considered.

         22                 MS. FREED: Let me just add on that,

         23  by the way, that they had -- DOH had actually

         24  announced at two community hearings that they were

         25  going to switch to low-sulfur fuel by February 1st.
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          2  So, they made the statement, we relied on it, and

          3  then somehow they decided they weren't going to do

          4  it. They didn't bother to tell us, but they

          5  certainly haven't done it, and it's clear they're

          6  not going to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 Thank you very much for your

          9  testimony. We really appreciate it.

         10                 I'm sorry I have to cut you short a

         11  little bit, we've got a whole stack of witnesses to

         12  go.

         13                 The last witness for this panel,

         14  please. Identify yourself again for the record, and

         15  proceed with your testimony.

         16                 MS. SILVERMAN: Maureen Silverman, WTC

         17  Environmental Coalition, resident of Independence

         18  Plaza, and Co-chair of the Outreach and Education

         19  Committee of New York City Coalition to End Lead

         20  Poisoning.

         21                 I'd like to address some of the

         22  concerns, first of all, about lead that have not

         23  been addressed already. And I wanted to thank

         24  Christine Quinn for supporting the work of our lead

         25  coalition and really being very active in trying to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            364

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  prevent lead poisoning in the City.

          3                 And Alan Gerson, thank you for really

          4  pushing the issue of lead, because we really want to

          5  prevent the irreversible damage that lead causes

          6  children.

          7                 I'm a little concerned about what I

          8  think I heard Dr. Goldschmitt saying about chelation

          9  therapy. And I think Christine Quinn, you know, your

         10  years of working with NYCO (phonetic), you know, you

         11  probably understand that I think it's pretty well

         12  known that once someone has a high level of lead in

         13  their body, the effects are irreversible and

         14  chelation does not reverse the cognitive deficits

         15  and the other irreversible harm that's done to

         16  children. And also we know that lead poisoning --

         17  we're working with Labor right now, and we know that

         18  when workers go out and do lead abatement without

         19  the proper protections, that they develop

         20  osteoporosis, mental confusion, and other problems.

         21  So, the issue is not chelation, the issue is

         22  prevention.

         23                 Now, Dr. Evelyn Mauss, she couldn't

         24  be here today, I spoke about her advice to us at the

         25  EPA Ombudsman hearing. She also testified November
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          2  8th at the City Council Hearing, she spoke at our

          3  press conference on December 18th at City Hall, and

          4  she's allowed me to reiterate the things that she's

          5  been advising us about, but first let me tell you

          6  what her qualifications are.

          7                 Dr. Evelyn is a senior research

          8  scientist at the Natural Resources Defense Council.

          9  She's been working on lead issues since the 1960s

         10  and is a leading expert on the area.

         11                 She's very concerned about -- she has

         12  been since the end of September, very concerned

         13  about the potential lead hazards from the World

         14  Trade Center. And for the Department of Health to

         15  get up here and to dismiss that, it just seems kind

         16  of outrageous to me, considering the potential

         17  sources that exist.

         18                 The sources that she's identified,

         19  she's testified about, as Hugh Kaufman, and I don't

         20  want to be repetitive, talked about, is that every

         21  computer has about four pounds of lead in it, and we

         22  know how many computers were in the World Trade

         23  Center. The fact that commercial lead was not

         24  stopped from being used until 1978, the World Trade

         25  Center was built before then. The fact that lead was
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          2  not banned in plumbing until a decade and a half

          3  after the World Trade Center was built. The fact

          4  that we know that the steel beams in the World Trade

          5  Center had lead in them. Those are potential hazards

          6  that she is very concerned about.

          7                 She has looked at the data. I was at

          8  a meeting of our Coalition this morning - she's

          9  outraged. She says one of the things she's been

         10  saying, she testified about at the November hearing,

         11  and she still finds, is that the EPA cannot say that

         12  lead is not a problem because the data is grossly

         13  inadequate.

         14                 She told us over and over again that

         15  there's been very little testing for lead. So, if

         16  there's been very sparse, inadequate testing for

         17  lead, how could we say it's not a problem.

         18                 So, you know, it's really something

         19  to look at. I want to say, since the end of

         20  September Dr. Mauss has been, and I know I spoke to

         21  Alan a little bit about that earlier, she's been

         22  urging for testing and screening of children in

         23  Lower Manhattan, you know, to test their lead

         24  levels, because there are concerns, and now, look,

         25  there are lead hazards in the school. To say that
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          2  it's all from, you know, from old residual things, I

          3  need to say it makes me a little outraged. Yes,

          4  there is some residual lead in the outdoors, but you

          5  know what? For years the real estate industry has

          6  been saying that in this City it's well documented

          7  that in the older buildings, not the schools that

          8  are post '90, but in the, you know, pre-1960

          9  buildings, that housing is a major source of lead

         10  poisoning, and the real estate industry has been

         11  lying, and other people don't want to deal with it

         12  by saying it's been tracked in by outside residual

         13  dust, when everyone knows that's not true.

         14                 But in the schools it's not from the

         15  lead paint, because these are post-1960 buildings,

         16  but the same kind of justification is being used to

         17  camouflage what we think some of the real issues

         18  might be.

         19                 Let's prevent lead poisoning. Lead

         20  poisoning causes irreversible damage in children.

         21  The medical cost to children, the lost productivity,

         22  you know, the damage to society is going to cost us

         23  more in the longrun than doing something now in

         24  terms of really taking the right protocol. And, you

         25  know, we know the barge is probably, you know, a
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          2  major, major issue.

          3                 So, I'd that to really be on the

          4  record.

          5                 And she also told me that she -- Dr.

          6  Mauss, we asked -- she's been writing, she wrote a

          7  month ago, actually wrote a letter along with the

          8  Borough President's Office asking the new Department

          9  of Health for a meeting to address these lead

         10  concerns, and she still has not been able to get the

         11  meeting.

         12                 This is just another example of how

         13  City agencies have been jerking us around, because

         14  the WTC -- well, I should finish. Also, she said

         15  that she's -- one thing that's a little confusing

         16  about the data from the schools is, she's concerned

         17  at some of the alarmingly high lead levels, but

         18  she's also concerned that she can't tell by looking

         19  at the data, looking at Stuyvesant website, exactly

         20  where -- what type of testing was done, was it done

         21  in the ear, was it done in the dust. She's tried to

         22  get the information over and over again from the

         23  Department of Health and they won't provide her with

         24  the data.

         25                 So, maybe the City Council could help
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          2  push a meeting with the Department of Health to help

          3  us get this meeting with the Department of Health to

          4  get them to get on board, to do the testing of the

          5  children, and to do the better -- you know, to

          6  really try to vigilantly get the EPA to do the

          7  proper testing for lead in the area.

          8                 And Chris Quinn, I know you did

          9  really great on that issue, so if you could help us

         10  with that, that would be wonderful.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We'll

         12  definitely follow-up after the hearing on that.

         13                 MS. SILVERMAN: Okay.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So, we should,

         15  just to make sure, get the best way to contact you.

         16                 MS. SILVERMAN: Sure. Sure.

         17                 I don't want to repeat anything that,

         18  you know, anyone said, I know we're short of time,

         19  Kathryn Freed, Hugh Kaufman, people pretty much

         20  summed up most of the other issues.

         21                 The one thing I'm think about is, you

         22  know, well, Hugh Kaufman spoke about the fact that

         23  people are being told to go back into their homes

         24  and they can't continue to get funding to stay where

         25  they were because the EPA is saying everything is
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          2  okay to their insurance companies. Well, at

          3  Independence Plaza, which is down the block from the

          4  barge, I live on Harrison Street, I live on Harrison

          5  near Greenwich, a block from the barge, we are about

          6  five or six blocks from the World Trade Center,

          7  there hasn't been any -- the only type of testing

          8  that was done about two to three months after

          9  September 11th are, our landlord did non-aggressive

         10  testing, only for asbestos in some apartments. The

         11  landlord has not tested for any other contaminants.

         12  They have not tested the terraces, they have not

         13  tested the roofs, they have not tested, they haven't

         14  done any clean-up, the ducts have not been cleaned

         15  out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're making

         17  our case for the need to do much better and thorough

         18  testing and --

         19                 MS. SILVERMAN: People are getting

         20  very sick.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         22  supporting what was said earlier on that.

         23                 Please summarize.

         24                 MS. SILVERMAN: Okay. I just wanted

         25  one sentence, then I'll finish. Can I say one thing?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead.

          3                 MS. SILVERMAN: Okay.

          4                 I don't want to repeat anything, but

          5  I want to say, in terms of frustrations, he talked

          6  about before for awhile no one from the Mayor's

          7  Office was here.

          8                 Well, we wrote to the Mayor's Office,

          9  the WTC Environmental Coalition in January, asked

         10  for a meeting. We have a list of demands. We've been

         11  ignored. The Mayor has still refused to meet with

         12  us.

         13                 The Lower Manhattan Tenants Coalition

         14  wrote to the Mayor and they've also been pushed

         15  aside to get a meeting also., and all the schools,

         16  all the schools wrote to the Mayor, and the Mayor

         17  has refused to meet with them.

         18                 This is unprecedented. This disaster,

         19  we all know, has caused catastrophic consequences,

         20  and the Mayor of New York has refused to meet with

         21  key players on this issue. I think that is criminal,

         22  that needs to go on the record, and something needs

         23  to be done about that.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: For the record,

         25  you're referring to Mayor Bloomberg.
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          2                 MS. SILVERMAN: Well, this Mayor and

          3  the former Mayor.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all

          5  very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 We're going to announce our next

          9  panel in just one second. Hang on.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: While we're

         11  doing this, let me just say, Maureen, thank you for

         12  all your work in the area of lead. I find it

         13  absolutely outrageous to hear the Department of

         14  Health dismiss these reported lead readings as

         15  background without any further analysis, especially

         16  given the discrepancy between the barge side, and

         17  the rear side of the buildings. I think that is

         18  absolutely irresponsible, and we will follow up

         19  immediately with that.

         20                 If you would like to sign up to

         21  testify, we would happy to have you sign up and

         22  testify. People can't testify unless they've signed

         23  up, unless they take a seat at the witness table.

         24                 Okay, next panel. Some of these

         25  people have already been announced. John Glass, Jr.
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          2  John Glass, Jr., and Dr. Marc Wilkenfeld, Eric

          3  Goldstein, Marjorie Clarke, Joel Kupferman, Steven

          4  Markowitz.

          5                 Is Steven Markowitz still here?

          6                 Dr. Neil Feldscher. We are on the

          7  clock. Three minutes, period, the end. Sorry about

          8  that, I should have been more strict earlier.

          9                 And then the first two witnesses on

         10  the panel after this will be Karen Friedman

         11  Agnifilio and Wayne Parcheman -- am I saying that

         12  right? -- From BMCC. They will be on the panel right

         13  after this.

         14                 And, so, if we could -- is everybody

         15  on this panel all set?

         16                 We can do the oath ritual.

         17                 Judith, if you could speak loudly

         18  into the mic, I couldn't hear you last time.

         19                 MS. MACFARLANE: Do you swear or

         20  affirm that the testimony you are about to give is

         21  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         22  truth?

         23                 DR. MARKOWITZ: I do.

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I do.

         25                 DR. WILKENFELD: I do.
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          2                 MR. GLASS: I do.

          3                 DR. CLARKE: I do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we would

          5  like to ask -- what did we do last time, we had

          6  people -- how about everyone on the panel identify

          7  themselves, and starting from, I guess, my left to

          8  my right, and then we'll go back.

          9                 Oh, pardon me. I only want to do

         10  people who are on this panel. Am I looking at people

         11  who aren't on this panel?

         12                 I'm only indicating people. Didn't we

         13  call Kupferman?

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: He has an

         15  associate with him, so he'll be on the next panel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

         17  You'll be on the next panel, okay?

         18                 Okay, we'll take the people seated at

         19  the table. Sorry for the confusion.

         20                 Okay, so, we'll go from this

         21  gentleman here, all the way to the right. And we'll

         22  make the introductions and then we'll start again

         23  with you and you can do your testimony.

         24                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Steven Markowitz, from

         25  the Center for the Biology and Natural Systems,
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          2  Queens College.

          3                 MR. GLASS: I'm Jack Glass, from

          4  Hillman Environmental Company. I was asked by

          5  Councilman Gerson to come discuss dust control

          6  techniques.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Eric Goldstein.

          9  Natural Resources Defense Council.

         10                 DR. WILKENFELD: Marc Wilkenfeld,

         11  Columbia University School of Medicine.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         13                 DR. CLARKE: Dr. Marjorie Clarke,

         14  Lehman College.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thanks

         16  very much.

         17                 We're going to be on the clock. So,

         18  Dr. Markowitz, you'll be our first clocked witness.

         19                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Thank you. I'm an

         20  occupational medicine physician. I direct the Center

         21  for Biology and Natural Systems at Queens College.

         22                 My remarks are relatively brief, and

         23  a little bit more lengthy in the written testimony.

         24                 We believe that essential deficiency

         25  in addressing the problem of air quality has been
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          2  the incomplete portrayal of the problem. The problem

          3  is not air quality per se, but human health, either

          4  actual or potential. And if this distinction seems

          5  thin, consider these questions.

          6                 Six months after September 11th, how

          7  much information do we have about the health of

          8  people who work at or live near the World Trade

          9  Center destruction?

         10                 How many people are affected and what

         11  is the extent and nature of their health problems?

         12  And the answer to these questions sadly are absent.

         13                 We have anecdotes but no systemic

         14  understanding of the true toll of September 11th to

         15  date on health.

         16                 Compare this with the availability of

         17  tens of thousands of environmental sample results

         18  which, interestingly, have mostly failed to explain

         19  why people downtown have not felt well.

         20                 At Queens College we've begun to

         21  address this issue. When we read about the

         22  firefighters in November developing, a significant

         23  proportion developing health problems, we decided to

         24  help out and address a group which otherwise was not

         25  going to get appropriate care, and these were the
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          2  day laborers, the building clean-up workers, who

          3  cleaned up the skyscrapers just adjacent to Ground

          4  Zero in the weeks and months following September

          5  11th.

          6                 We work with the New York Committee

          7  for Occupational Safety and Health in the American

          8  Workers Project, and in doing this we got funding

          9  from September 11th fund, and we set up a mobile

         10  medical monitoring unit just a few steps away from

         11  here at Barclay and Broadway.

         12                 We just finished our medical

         13  examinations last week, and, so, I'm just going to

         14  give you a summary of the results that we found.

         15                 Actually, prior to setting up this,

         16  you know, we weren't quite sure whether there would

         17  be a problem. These are the building clean-up

         18  workers, in particular the day laborers, who shape

         19  up on corners and are picked up to work by the day

         20  or by the week, and within a couple of days of

         21  setting up our unit, January 14th, it was quite

         22  clear that there was a problem. There were

         23  significant number of these workers, they were ill,

         24  and they needed appropriate attention.

         25                 Let me summarize, since I see the
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          2  time is really disappearing.

          3                 Over a five-week period we examined

          4  415 building clean-up workers. We conducted medical

          5  histories, occupational histories, breathing tests.

          6  We gave respirator-fit testing, we gave them free

          7  respirators, and the physical examinations.

          8                 Most of the people we saw were

          9  Hispanic, mostly immigrant, a lot of Ecuador and

         10  Columbia in particular, but other countries in South

         11  America, as well.

         12                 Virtually none of them have health

         13  insurance, none of them -- almost none of them have

         14  a physician. Everybody we saw was sick. We saw 415

         15  people. They came to us because they were ill.

         16                 They have two types of problems: one

         17  is persistent irritation symptoms --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead.

         19                 DR. MARKOWITZ: I'll be brief.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just complete

         21  your thought.

         22                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Including sore throat,

         23  congestion and the like. They also had some systemic

         24  symptoms of headache, dizziness, poor appetite,

         25  sleeping poorly, et cetera.
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          2                 What was remarkable was the pattern

          3  of symptoms, it was absolutely consistent among over

          4  400 people.

          5                 What was also remarkable is that most

          6  of these workers had finished working, finished

          7  clean-up in these skyscrapers four to six weeks

          8  before we saw them, and, yet, they were still ill.

          9  So the persistence of the problems that they had was

         10  remarkable.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         12                 DR. MARKOWITZ: We don't know what was

         13  in the dust. We do know, however, that people were

         14  sick.

         15                 Now, lastly, this is a step away from

         16  Ground Zero. We know that some Ground Zero workers

         17  are ill, in particular the firefighters. The rest,

         18  remarkably, have not been examined.

         19                 This is a step away. We look at

         20  people who worked with dust for weeks and months at

         21  a time after Ground Zero, they are ill. They are not

         22  getting appropriate attention.

         23                 And then in my written testimony I

         24  give a number of recommendations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doctor, thank
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          2  you very much. And I also thank you for the good

          3  work of the Center for the Biology of Natural

          4  Systems. Many people know here that I teach at

          5  Queens College, please give Barry my best when you

          6  go back there.

          7                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course I mean

          9  Barry Commoner, everybody knows it's Barry Commoner

         10  with CBNS.

         11                 Doctor, thank you very much for your

         12  testimony.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: If I could

         14  just ask the other witnesses who have expertise in

         15  industrial hygiene and environmental science, if you

         16  could include it in your remarks any idea that you

         17  might offer for immediate improved dust suppression

         18  in the removal and barge operation, that would help

         19  us.

         20                 And also, Dr. Neal Feldscher, you

         21  were called. Your name may have been misprounced.

         22  Oh, you are up there, okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The next

         24  witness, if you could just state your name once

         25  again for the record, and proceed with your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 MR. GLASS: I'm Jack Glass from

          4  Hillman Environmental Company. I am a Board

          5  Certified Industrial Hygienist. My background is in

          6  environmental health and environmental exposure

          7  assessment and control. I was asked here to talk

          8  about dust control procedures and methods and things

          9  that could be available to control dust from

         10  virtually any operation.

         11                 To give you a little background.

         12  First of all, in any environmental exposure you have

         13  three things in common: you have source, you have

         14  pathway and you have a target. In this situation we

         15  have multiple sources. The sources, point of loading

         16  the trucks, the path of travel from the Ground Zero

         17  to the barge, and then the transfer of the material

         18  from the trucks into the barge.

         19                 The pathway in uncontrollable. It is

         20  the air, it is the wind, it is virtually unlimited.

         21  The target is again very multiple. We have

         22  buildings, people, we have people in traffic on the

         23  roads. So, again, the pathway may not be the point

         24  of control that you want to look at because it is so

         25  varied and so fluctuating.
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          2                 The only thing of these three items

          3  that lends itself towards reasonable control is the

          4  source.

          5                 So that being said, let's look at the

          6  potential actions that you can take for dust

          7  control.

          8                 You can really break it down into

          9  three basic topics. You have elimination, reduction

         10  or acceptance.

         11                 Now, acceptance means that you're

         12  accepting the dust loads that are there and you're

         13  going to live with it. That really is an option that

         14  should only be considered after the previous two are

         15  completely exhausted. Previous to elimination. You

         16  can eliminate the task. Don't take the stuff out of

         17  the hole. Probably not an option.

         18                 You can drive direct to the final

         19  site instead of using a barge. Again, now you will

         20  not have the dust generation.

         21                 You can relocate the task. That

         22  really just pushes the problem to somewhere else. It

         23  may or may not be an option you wish to consider.

         24                 The other thing that you can do to

         25  eliminate exposure is full enclosure infiltration.
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          2  To do this you would need to create an airtight

          3  enclosure that would completely cover the truck, the

          4  transfer area from the truck to the barge, place it

          5  under negative pressure, and maintain filtration of

          6  that air.

          7                 Probably not a feasible answer

          8  because of the size and the negative pressure

          9  equipment that you need would be overwhelming.

         10                 The noise and diesel emissions from

         11  that equipment would probably exceed the dust

         12  emissions that you have now.

         13                 Which leads us then with reduction,

         14  and you have multiple options there. You can do

         15  partial closure infiltration. The whole idea of this

         16  reduction is that you don't go for 100 percent. You

         17  go for at least some benefit all the way along the

         18  line.

         19                 So, partial enclosure, limited

         20  effectiveness, and the task would vary, depending on

         21  whether or not you were losing large pieces of

         22  material or a truck full of ash.

         23                 Wind would affect the efficiency of

         24  it, and the dust is still there, because you're not

         25  going to be able to filter it too effectively.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            384

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2                 Next is to redirect the dust away

          3  from your target.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Why don't you

          5  finish up that thought and then hang around for

          6  maybe a question.

          7                 MR. GLASS: That's fine.

          8                 You can redirect, unfortunately, that

          9  does not eliminate the dust, but only pushes it

         10  towards a different target, and perhaps may spread

         11  it out to a wider exposure, thereby lowering the

         12  continuous exposure to any given target.

         13                 Now, the last three obviously were

         14  going to be the answers that you need to consider.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next witness,

         16  please. Identify yourself for the record. As if we

         17  all don't know.

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: My name is Eric

         19  Goldstein, Natural Resources Defense Council.

         20                 Congratulations, Mr. Chairman. Thank

         21  you for holding this Committee hearing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Eric.

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I will summarize my

         24  summary of the report NRDC has produced on our

         25  preliminary analysis of the World Trade Center
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          2  events, which is available on the web at

          3  www.nrdc.org. This obviously was the single largest

          4  pollution, air pollution episode in New York City's

          5  history. While government performed magnificently in

          6  many other aspects of the response to September

          7  11th, there were some shortcomings in the area of

          8  environmental health protection for New York City.

          9                 One major problem was overlapping

         10  jurisdiction among at least nine City, state and

         11  federal agencies, which meant that no single agency

         12  was in overall charge of the environmental aspects

         13  of the response to September 11th. For example, no

         14  agency took affirmative charge of the environmental

         15  clean up and inspection of environmental conditions

         16  prior to reoccupancy of office buildings and

         17  residences that were coated with pollution and

         18  debris.

         19                 Many of these problems NRDC believes

         20  resulted from shortcomings by the Giuliani

         21  Administration, which handles so many other aspects

         22  of the September 11th response magnificently.

         23                 In particular, the Department of

         24  Environmental protection under former Joel Miele did

         25  not rise to the challenge as posed by the September
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          2  11th attacks, and did not fulfill in our view the

          3  mandates of the City Charter with respect to

          4  emergency response.

          5                 There are other problems and

          6  shortcomings with government, but let me skip, if I

          7  can at this moment, to highlight five of the six --

          8  rather, six of the 12 recommendations we set forth.

          9                 First, we urge to press the newly

         10  created US Environmental Protection Agency's Indoor

         11  Air Task Force to promptly begin

         12  building-by-building site visit inspections and

         13  testing, particularly of ventilation systems,

         14  building facades and mechanical systems, and to

         15  undertake clean-ups where warranted.

         16                 FEMA monies should be used for these

         17  clean-ups, but that will only happen if the City

         18  asks for such help. And testing should be done

         19  pursuant to uniformed protocols with clean-ups done

         20  by qualified professionals and should include post

         21  clean-up testing.

         22                 This systematic effort should begin

         23  on Monday.

         24                 Second, the long discussed state,

         25  city and federal plan to make available low-sulfur
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          2  fuel and to retrofit diesel-powered equipment and

          3  trucks to reduce toxic emissions in this already

          4  overburdened community should be implemented

          5  properly.

          6                 All the agencies have told NRDC that

          7  they want to do this, and further delays are

          8  inexcusable.

          9                 Third, the City Council and the Mayor

         10  should enact legislation to create a Committee of

         11  Environmental Science and Health Advisors to be

         12  available for this and future environmental health

         13  emergencies to assist City officials in analyzing

         14  pollution data and health risks, to improve

         15  communications with residents and businesses, and to

         16  rebuild public confidence in the credibility of

         17  government pronouncements on environmental health

         18  matters.

         19                 New York has a vast network of some

         20  of the most distinguished medical experts in the

         21  country, some of them you've heard from today, and

         22  we need to create a mechanism to tap into this

         23  resource better for this and future environmental

         24  health crises.

         25                 Fourth, the Council and the Mayor
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          2  should secure the services of a private management

          3  consultant or academic institution to conduct an

          4  independent assessment of the response by City

          5  agencies to the environmental health challenges that

          6  followed from the September 11th attacks.

          7                 The Fire Department, with all of its

          8  heroes, has had the courage to commission such an

          9  analysis of its handling of September 11th, and it's

         10  critical that the environmental health agencies also

         11  understand and learn from the experience of their

         12  agencies in responding to 9/11, and one way to do

         13  that is to get that kind of independent analysis.

         14                 And quickly, the last two

         15  recommendations I will highlight today. The Council

         16  should call on the City's Health Department to put

         17  together with all appropriate agencies and medical

         18  experts, a proposal for federal funding, probably

         19  under the Centers for Disease Control of a

         20  comprehensive health registry of all workers,

         21  residents, students and newborns who were exposed to

         22  the toxic emissions of 9/11. Again, this can happen,

         23  but it will only happen if the City presses for it

         24  and asks for it.

         25                 And, finally, number six for today,
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          2  the Council should call upon the State and EPA to

          3  reassess and reinforce the City's Air Quality

          4  Monitoring Network to ensure that it meets our needs

          5  for complete information in both normal times and

          6  during environmental emergency situations.

          7                 On 9/11 apparently there was only a

          8  single particulate matter monitor in all of Lower

          9  Manhattan. And these kinds of weaknesses in our air

         10  quality monitoring system clearly need to be

         11  remediated.

         12                 Thank you for your attention, and

         13  please continue to hold everyone's feet to the fire

         14  until we get this issue resolved.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Eric.

         16  Certainly your testimony and your ideas here will

         17  help us do that as always. Please give my

         18  compliments to Mark as well.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Did you submit

         20  a copy of your six-point plan in writing?

         21                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes, we will. Twelve

         22  of them are listed in the report which we gave and

         23  sent to you. But we will get you a written copy of

         24  today's testimony.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Could you
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          2  please?

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Eric.

          5                 DR. WILKENFELD: I'm Marc Wilkenfeld,

          6  I'm a Board Certified Occupational Physician. I'm

          7  Assistant Professor of Clinical Medicine at Columbia

          8  University, and Research Assistant Professor of

          9  Environmental Medicine at NYU University School of

         10  Medicine. But perhaps for today's purposes my most

         11  important credential is the fact that I live and

         12  work downtown as well.

         13                 Since September 11th, it's ironic

         14  that prior to September 11th, in order to find

         15  environmental or occupational hazards, an

         16  occupational physician often had to travel far, now

         17  it's happening right in our backyard.

         18                 Since time is short, I just want to

         19  bring up two of what we consider to be the most

         20  important issues.

         21                 Number one, I think you heard earlier

         22  about the apartments. We have been involved in

         23  advising both tenant groups and corporations

         24  downtown in terms of clean-up, and we found a huge

         25  dichotomy in the way these are handled.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            391

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  Multi-million dollar corporations spend a great deal

          3  of money, effort and time cleaning, retesting,

          4  cleaning, retesting, cleaning, retesting, until

          5  things are spotless. As you probably heard this

          6  morning, quite the opposite were the residents who

          7  live downtown, who were often told to use a wet mop

          8  to clean up and to try not to breathe in the dust

          9  while they were doing so.

         10                 This is an unacceptable situation.

         11                 The second issue that I want to bring

         12  up today is the barge. We've been asked to review

         13  the process of trucking debris from the Ground Zero

         14  site, bringing it to the barge, then dumping it into

         15  the barge, this creates a second intolerable

         16  situation in terms of dust in the area.

         17                 The barge is also very cleverly

         18  located in close proximity to a school. We were

         19  asked to review some of the scientific data, some of

         20  the dust levels within the school, what we noted is

         21  that on certain days, and this happened in January,

         22  you will have lead levels in the dust. It will be

         23  cleaned up, it will be spotless, two weeks later the

         24  same thing happens again.

         25                 The only apparent source for this
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          2  contamination to occur is the barge process.

          3                 Okay, so based on these two problems,

          4  we've come up with a five-point plan:

          5                 - either move the barge operation or

          6  assure that procedures are in place to make sure

          7  that no exposure occurs to the children in the

          8  school or other residents.

          9                 - a single agency is to be

         10  responsible for environmental issues in downtown

         11  Manhattan.

         12                 I see that the Mayor noted that we

         13  came up with this and has already started on that

         14  track according to the press releases on it.

         15                 - establish guidelines for the clean

         16  up of residences. Ensure that proper testing and

         17  clean-up is documented.

         18                 - funding must be allocated for this

         19  process.

         20                 - and fifth, arrange for medical

         21  monitoring free of charge for workers and residents

         22  downtown with health complaints.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Doctor, very much.
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          2                 I appreciate your testimony, and it's

          3  great to have the insight of someone who not only

          4  has your background, but also is living it every

          5  day.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You know, Mr.

          7  Chair, just let me state for the record that we've

          8  been very fortunate to have Dr. Marc Wilkenfeld as

          9  an advisor to the work of our office in dealing with

         10  all of these health and environmental issues. I want

         11  to acknowledge that for the record, and also thank

         12  him. I've known Dr. Wilkenfeld for many, many years

         13  and I've been fortunate to know him in both a

         14  personal, as well as a professional capacity.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Doctor, for your service in time of great crisis. We

         17  appreciate it very much. Thank you.

         18                 Maggie, do you want to introduce

         19  yourself for the record and present your testimony?

         20                 DR. CLARKE: I'm Dr. Marjorie Clarke,

         21  scientist and residence at Lehman College, and my

         22  background that is useful today is that I worked at

         23  the Sanitation Department and was their incinerator

         24  emissions reduction expert. Basically what we had

         25  here is a gigantic incinerator, as well as
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          2  crematorium and asbestos factory.

          3                 And I also served on a National

          4  Academy of Sciences Committee on Health Affects of

          5  Waste Incineration.

          6                 You have my testimony there in

          7  writing, I'll cover just a few points here.

          8                 The toxic soup that we keep talking

          9  about, I want to clarify that it's not only gaseous

         10  material. Everything that came off may have been

         11  volatized to begin with, in terms of the fire, we

         12  would have had volatilization of heavy metals,

         13  volatilization of dioxins, but eventually, as the

         14  materials cool, as they get to the edge of the fire,

         15  they get onto the surfaces of the fine particles. So

         16  when we talk about the particulate matter in

         17  different places, it's coated with heavy metals,

         18  dioxins, and acid gases and everything else that

         19  would have been in the air at that time.

         20                 So, I want to just underline that

         21  when we talk about asbestos remediation you're also

         22  doing heavy metals remediation, dioxin remediation

         23  and all of those things at the same time.

         24                 And the fact that many of these

         25  particulates were so tiny, and they get down to the
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          2  bottom of the lung, if you have something that is a

          3  carcinogen sitting at the bottom of a lung for a

          4  long time, you have several carcinogens, to me it

          5  would increase the likelihood of untorrid events

          6  happening ten, 20 years down the line.

          7                 So I want to also underline that we

          8  use the precautionary principle, that we use the

          9  most aggressive sampling techniques, that we use the

         10  most sensitive instruments available, and we use the

         11  most sensitive analytical techniques. Because I've

         12  been hearing bits and pieces of what people have

         13  been using, and it seems like for convenience we're

         14  using something that perhaps is not the best, not

         15  the most cautious approach.

         16                 Now flipping quickly through, not too

         17  many people have talked about building codes, I have

         18  something about that in here, but it seems like the

         19  Trade Center was built in such a way that it was

         20  built with toxic substances, it was built without

         21  sufficient room to evacuate people, even the

         22  operations and the fire codes and drills were not

         23  sufficient to evacuate people, and that probably

         24  ended up killing a number of people right there.

         25                 Also, the Attorney General Office of
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          2  the US has stated that we should be in for worse

          3  terrorist activity. We're certainly going to have

          4  other things as time goes on. This is not the only

          5  time buildings will fall down.

          6                 My recommendation is that we need to

          7  put together a permanent environmental disaster

          8  research center, and just like in Florida where they

          9  put a national hurricane research center in Coral

         10  Gables, where I grew up, because they wanted to know

         11  more about hurricanes, I think putting one downtown

         12  to research synergistic effects of chemical

         13  interactions, as well as the particular disaster

         14  that we have here so that we can avoid some of these

         15  problems in the future would be a good move.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 That sounds like a good idea.

         19                 I mean, speaking as an academic

         20  myself, it sounds like a terrific idea.

         21                 I think some of the members here have

         22  questions.

         23                 Council Member Quinn.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Dr. Markowitz;

         25  is that right?
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          2                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Yes.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So, when you

          4  tested the day laborers, you did find -- just

          5  restate -- I'm sorry -- your findings for me.

          6                 DR. MARKOWITZ: We examined over 400

          7  of them. They came to us mostly because they didn't

          8  feel well.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         10                 DR. MARKOWITZ: I can't talk about

         11  incidents. But there was a remarkably common pattern

         12  among them. They certainly had upper respiratory

         13  irritation, and they had some systemic symptoms.

         14                 Some of this is plausible,

         15  fiberglass, crushed glass, concrete and the like,

         16  some of it we can't readily explain, not knowing

         17  what was in the dust, but here we have a real

         18  bioassay. We have people who are ill --

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You have a

         20  what?

         21                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Bioassay. It's what

         22  you do when you take a material and you expose

         23  people or rats or what have you, and you find out

         24  what happens.

         25                 So, we haven't yet identified

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            398

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  properly, completely what's in the dust at the World

          3  Trade Center, but we know from these people that

          4  they are ill from exposure to this dust.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And what are

          6  the plans now? I mean, are those 415 individuals in

          7  a care plan, or are they going to come back? Or tell

          8  me what we're planning to do next.

          9                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Well, they have no

         10  health insurance.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         12                 DR. MARKOWITZ: They have no

         13  physicians. If they had physicians, chances are the

         14  physicians wouldn't know anything about toxic

         15  exposures.

         16                 But we're going to try to follow them

         17  for a period of time. They'll be tough to follow

         18  because some of them are transient. We have

         19  addresses, we're going to try our best to work with

         20  New York Committee for Occupational Safety Health in

         21  the Latin American Workers Project to follow them.

         22  But they will be tough to track and to follow.

         23                 On the other hand, frankly, we're

         24  very encouraged that with very little effort and a

         25  lot of press what people did turn out.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          3                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Which means I think is

          4  evidenced in part by people in this room, but it's

          5  much deeper than that. There are a lot of people who

          6  are sick and concerned, and I don't think, as Dr.

          7  Wilkenfeld mentioned, I don't think people out there

          8  really have proper access to available expert

          9  occupational environmental health care. It's a

         10  problem.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And as you all

         12  try to keep in touch with these folks, or bring them

         13  back, I mean is there any plan from Health and

         14  Hospitals or any offer from Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation or Department of Health or anything to

         16  try to pull together a team of people who are,

         17  physicians who are experts in this area, who could

         18  be able to -- who would be able to see some of these

         19  people?

         20                 DR. MARKOWITZ: We've talked to

         21  Bellevue to help us with that.

         22                 But there is really no institutional

         23  mechanism for doing that.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So we have to

         25  create one.
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          2                 DR. MARKOWITZ: That's right.

          3                 You know, immigrant occupational

          4  health is something which is largely unaddressed.

          5  Immigrants get the dirtiest jobs in the City, always

          6  have, always will, and there is no -- something that

          7  you could be helpful with is to direct the

          8  Department of Health to actually make this an area

          9  to pay some attention to, where we could develop

         10  some services for immigrants who have, in

         11  particular, occupational health problems and health

         12  problems beyond that.

         13                 Let me make one other point. I think

         14  most of the workers at Ground Zero itself have not

         15  been properly exempt. The firefighters, yes. The

         16  ironworkers, 120 at Mount Sinai, that's it. The

         17  operating engineers, not so. Contrary to the earlier

         18  testimony, I think most of the Ground Zero workers,

         19  the police, some of the EMT that they belong to the

         20  Fire Department, have not been properly examined.

         21  You know, in part because we don't hear about it in

         22  the medical establishment, but also because we got

         23  called. When we set our thing up for the building

         24  clean-up workers, the day laborers, we got calls

         25  from people who we thought were taken care of. But
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          2  they're not being taken care of.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The police have

          4  still not, is your understanding, correct?

          5                 DR. MARKOWITZ: That's my

          6  understanding.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Which is

          8  interesting, because the State and Federal

          9  Legislation Committee of the City Council had a

         10  hearing about federal response to the World Trade

         11  Center disaster, I don't remember exactly when, but

         12  some time prior to the expiration of the old

         13  Council, somewhere in between September 11th and

         14  December 31st, and at that hearing there was the

         15  discussion about the firefighters being tested, and

         16  the federal government said that they were going to

         17  be doing the police officers in the near future.

         18                 DR. MARKOWITZ: You know, the idea of

         19  a registry is nice. I mean, there's real pros and

         20  cons to that, but at least in the short-term, people

         21  who are ill, may be ill, who are worried, should get

         22  proper care, and then worry about registries and

         23  tracking and the like.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, as it

         25  relates specifically to the day laborers, I mean it
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          2  seems to me there's an opportunity here to try to

          3  coordinate with HHC and Department of Health and

          4  figure out ongoing care, an ongoing care model for

          5  the workers, which we then may be able to take that

          6  model and try to get it institutionalized somehow

          7  else within HHC of the Department of Health, that

          8  would be helpful in the long-term. So, I would like

          9  to follow up on this with you after this hearing.

         10                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Okay.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And just the

         12  other thing on that, we should probably follow-up on

         13  this figuring out how to get HHC to work with you,

         14  with you and your center when you're interacting

         15  with these folks, because there may be City health

         16  programs that they qualify for Family Health Plus,

         17  Child Health Plus, Medicaid, whatever, that if we

         18  could, you know, engage them in the registration

         19  process, separate and apart from the specific care

         20  that they're going to need --

         21                 DR. MARKOWITZ: You know --

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: -- From the

         23  World Trade Center.

         24                 DR. MARKOWITZ: -- That's an excellent

         25  idea, and we've begun talking to Bellevue and we
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          2  will continue to talk to Bellevue about that.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. Maybe we

          4  can take it a little higher up the chain, but we'll

          5  follow-up afterwards.

          6                 DR. MARKOWITZ: Okay.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, I

          8  don't remember what you name is?

          9                 DR. WILKENFELD: Dr. Wilkenfeld.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Dr. Wilkenfeld,

         11  you had said in your testimony that the barge

         12  shouldn't happen unless the schools are, you know,

         13  cleaned on a regular basis. Do you think that's

         14  feasible? Possible?

         15                 DR. WILKENFELD: What I said is that

         16  it's interesting that despite it being cleaned

         17  repeatedly, we find recurring high levels of lead in

         18  the dust.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, okay.

         20                 DR. WILKENFELD: So that tells us as

         21  scientists that there's a continued exposure going

         22  on.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         24                 DR. WILKENFELD: And it's ironic that

         25  the group that you want least exposed to lead is
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          2  children, so if you could pick the worst possible

          3  place in New York City to put that barge, it would

          4  be exactly where it is.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Council Member Gerson.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Dr. Clarke,

         10  let me say I not only thank you for your testimony,

         11  and I've been privileged to hear your input on

         12  occasions before, even though I had to step into the

         13  other room at the time, I assure you the sound

         14  system carries, and as always, I heed your words of

         15  wisdom. So, I wanted to note that and thank you.

         16                 DR. CLARKE: Thank you.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Let's see

         18  where to begin.

         19                 Mr. Glass, as I recall, there were

         20  three points of possible dust suppression that you

         21  needed to get to when the bell rang.

         22                 MR. GLASS: Okay, I guess just to

         23  continue on, you have really a choice of either

         24  altering the activities, altering the impact those

         25  activities are going to create or a combination of
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          2  the above.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Just ways of,

          4  bulletpoint the ways.

          5                 MR. GLASS: Okay.

          6                 Altering activities. You alter the

          7  way that it's either on-loaded or off-loaded. Maybe

          8  using drop-off containers so that you're no longer

          9  dumping.

         10                 Actually change the whole method of

         11  what's being done. Manual offloading would slow down

         12  the work, but would create lower dust.

         13                 If you need to continue on using the

         14  dump trucks, then reducing the speed of transfer,

         15  limitation on height of the dump so that the

         16  material will then proceed at a slower rate, less

         17  dust generation.

         18                 Reducing the height of transfer.

         19  Either creating a ferry-type situation where the

         20  truck backs directly into the barge, and, therefore,

         21  you have a very low height, or a dock that is

         22  somehow lowered below the height of the ferry so

         23  that the dump is at the deposit height. That, again,

         24  would greatly reduce the volume of dust that is

         25  generated.
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          2                 If you can't reduce the amount of

          3  dust generated, perhaps you can reduce the impact --

          4  I'm sorry. If you can't reduce the changed

          5  activities, then you can reduce the impact of those

          6  activities.

          7                 Wetting the material. Your single,

          8  most effective means of dust control. Now, the

          9  increased wetting is beneficial in it's going to

         10  lower dust, however, it does have the downside in

         11  that it increases runoff, and you now have another

         12  emissions situation that you need to look at. Any

         13  runoff from that wetting is going to need to be

         14  collected. It greatly increases the weight. It's

         15  going to increase the probability of tipover of the

         16  trucks, it's going to reduce the amount of material

         17  that the barge can take in a given load, it's going

         18  to reduce the effectiveness of using a waterborne

         19  craft because of the increased weight.

         20                 Saturation is what you would need.

         21  Saturation is very difficult, because the wetting

         22  has been occurring on the top of the load, you need

         23  to saturate through the entire depth of the load.

         24  Therefore, that saturation would need to occur from

         25  the loading point at the hole. Now you would need to
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          2  start wetting down using the firehoses in the whole

          3  wetting, in the crane, as it's loading the truck.

          4                 Then as these trucks are pulled up,

          5  they're then dumped again at the corner where the

          6  firefighters are still going through the material.

          7  There's been a lot of resistance, from what I

          8  understand, from too much saturation, because it

          9  hinders the searching after it's been moved.

         10                 So then in that case, then you begin

         11  wetting after the search. But the more wetting

         12  during the loading process, the less you have to

         13  worry about saturating through the top thickness.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Let me ask

         15  you, could you provide to me and to us a written

         16  synopsis of the additional dust suppression

         17  techniques you mentioned, the dropoff containers,

         18  the reducing the height, the saturation --

         19                 MR. GLASS: Sure.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: That would be

         21  very helpful.

         22                 I take it the sum and substance of

         23  what you're saying is there are available means that

         24  could be employed to significantly reduce dust

         25  emissions from the site?
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          2                 MR. GLASS: Other than it completely

          3  eliminating the process, you're not going to

          4  eliminate dust generation, but there are many ways

          5  that you can reduce the amount of dust and reduce

          6  the impact of that dust.

          7                 You need to develop where your

          8  acceptable limit is and decide if that's going to be

          9  acceptable. You may need to do multiple things and

         10  then still have an exposure.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But if you

         12  would provide that to us, that would be --

         13                 MR. GLASS: Sure.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: That would be

         15  very helpful.

         16                 I take it you would not be suggesting

         17  these alternatives if in your expert opinion they

         18  were not, you know, cost effective?

         19                 MR. GLASS: No. Some of these

         20  suggestions are completely not cost effective, and

         21  I've actually made that comment.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You mentioned

         23  that earlier, but the ones in the other categories

         24  --

         25                 MR. GLASS: There may be additional
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          2  economic weight, but the entire event has been a

          3  significant economic --

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Dr.

          5  Wilkenfeld, you were here earlier, and I know you

          6  had to step out to attend to your patients, and now

          7  you're back and we appreciate that, but while you

          8  were gone someone from the Department of Health

          9  testified as to the lead levels, the lead readings

         10  near the schools, and that person basically

         11  dismissed those readings as very probably normal New

         12  York City type ups and downs in lead levels. Do you

         13  have any comments on that?

         14                 DR. WILKENFELD: I would disagree with

         15  that, because we haven't found it in any of the

         16  companies that have been tested further away from

         17  the barge, so it's extremely logical to conclude

         18  that it occurs --

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I'm sorry, you

         20  haven't found it where?

         21                 DR. WILKENFELD: Many companies are

         22  testing their offices blocks away from the barge,

         23  even closer to Ground Zero. We have not found the

         24  same type of levels in those places.

         25                 The school is pretty much the only
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          2  place where those levels have turned up.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay. That

          4  would indicate that something --

          5                 DR. WILKENFELD: I hate to disagree

          6  with the Department of Health, but I do.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And, finally,

          8  Mr. Goldstein, you testified, I don't know if you

          9  were here earlier when I questioned about the

         10  conversion to the low-sulfur non-diesel fuel

         11  alternative, and you heard one of the witnesses

         12  raise all these technological obstacles that may

         13  stand in the way and may delay matters. I mean, is

         14  it feasible or is it not -- if the City were to

         15  command it to be done by the end of next week, could

         16  it be done?

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I can't say for

         18  certain it could be done by the end of next week,

         19  but it can certainly be done by the end of this

         20  month, if the City made the commitment to do it.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And do you

         22  have any idea of differential in cost involved? Not

         23  that it should matter but --

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: There's a small added

         25  cost, particularly for retrofitting, but overall if
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          2  you're comparing the health costs, you could

          3  certainly say it balances out and the community

          4  already overburdens, it's something that makes sense

          5  to do, and, in fact, the idea of low-sulfur and

          6  ultra low-sulfur fuel being used has been around for

          7  awhile, and is not new to this event because it

          8  could so significantly increase public health

          9  protection because of cutting these emissions.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Okay. Thank

         11  you all very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you all.

         14                 Next panel, Joel Kupferman. And you

         15  have somebody with you, I don't know the name of

         16  your associate.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Neil Feldscher

         18  was supposed to be part of the --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Neil Feldscher

         20  kind of got -- Dr. Feldscher.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Is he still

         22  here?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Dr. Feldscher.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: He goes first

         25  because he was supposed to be part --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          3                 Wayne from BMCC, last name I can't

          4  really make out, Parchement.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And Dr.

          6  Shriley Rausher.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Richard Muller.

          8  Okay, you're officially called.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Those of you

         10  who deserve the patience prize for waiting, you will

         11  be in the next panel, and I assure you we will be

         12  eagerly listening to every utterance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just out of

         14  curiosity, how many people in the audience, not

         15  counting the people who are coming up to this panel

         16  now, how many people in the audience wish to

         17  testify? One, two, three -- so we'll do one more

         18  panel after this, and we can get everybody in in the

         19  last panel.

         20                 Okay, we're going to do the oath. So,

         21  Judith, once again if I can call upon you to provide

         22  that service.

         23                 MS. MACFARLANE: Do you swear or

         24  affirm that the testimony you're about to give is

         25  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
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          2  truth?

          3                 MR. KUPFERMAN: I do.

          4                 MR. MULLER: I do.

          5                 MR. FELDSCHER: I do.

          6                 MR. PARCHEMAN: I do.

          7                 DR. RAUSHER: I do.

          8                 MS. FLYNN: I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Rather than each

         10  one introducing in turn, perhaps we'll just start at

         11  this end and make your statement.

         12                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Could I just go first,

         13  because I have a meeting to go to and I waited?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Joel, I'll

         15  tell you what, could we do one, two, three, is that

         16  okay?

         17                 Okay, I'll tell you what, here's what

         18  we're going to do. I'm going to assert.

         19                 Doctor, you were in the last panel

         20  and we didn't hear you, so you're one panel behind.

         21  So, we'll do you. And then if we don't hear you

         22  after him you're going to walk, right?

         23                 All right, one, two, BMCC. He just

         24  has 30 seconds. One, two, and then Mr. Muller from

         25  the Borough President only has 30 seconds, and then
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          2  BMCC and then -- are all three BMCC? You're with

          3  him, okay. All right, maybe we can just work that if

          4  we can.

          5                 Doctor, please.

          6                 DR. FELDSCHER: Thank you. And I

          7  apologize, I can't stay after this, unfortunately I

          8  have to run.

          9                 I'm a Board Certified Industrial

         10  Hygienist, and a Board Certified Safety

         11  Professional, and unfortunately, after having gone

         12  after Jack Glass, you've heard many of the excellent

         13  things that Jack has had to say. Jack is completely

         14  correct, the only effective method of dust

         15  suppression is to not have dust. It's not practical.

         16  We have material, we have to remove the material.

         17  So, complete getting rid of it is not an option. So,

         18  if we accept that we have waste, we must truck the

         19  waste.

         20                 Jack has gone very well into talking

         21  about suppression, that is our only option at this

         22  point, suppressing the dust. The methods of

         23  movement, Jack has talked about. A much better

         24  method of movement would be sealed containers. Lift

         25  the container put onto the barge, it's absolutely
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          2  the best method. There is no effect of loading onto

          3  the barge, there is no effect of transporting it

          4  down the street, there is no effect of it going down

          5  the street as it flows, as it goes down the street,

          6  whether it's moving fast, whether it's moving slow,

          7  the airflow across it.

          8                 With open dump trucks, even with

          9  having covers on them, the covers are not airtight,

         10  you can't make them airtight. There's edges, there's

         11  the trucks that are dirty themselves. You're going

         12  to get this dust. And the fact of the matter is, the

         13  barge is across the street from a school. Whether a

         14  Department of Health person or not believes that

         15  those samples that you saw came from the barge or

         16  not, they have to be explained somewhere. High lead

         17  levels are not flying around the City. I can tell

         18  you from my sampling throughout the City, you do not

         19  get high lead levels just by existing in this City.

         20  This City may have a lot of pollution, but lead

         21  flying around is not necessarily one of them.

         22                 The fact of the matter is, the school

         23  board did a cleaning of that building, they have

         24  done numerous cleanings of that building. If lead is

         25  coming back in there, I strongly urge it is not
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          2  coming from the general environment. There's an

          3  actual source, and we have a source that's going by

          4  that building.

          5                 Jack has talked about dust

          6  suppression, water. Water is the method of choice

          7  usually on almost all projects of this nature. Water

          8  controls dust at the source. The problem is you

          9  still have to move it. From a construction

         10  standpoint, they do not like to wet. In this case we

         11  also had the additional issue of recovery, but from

         12  a construction standpoint, wetting creates

         13  additional material. It weighs down all their waste.

         14  It's not a preferred method for a contractor

         15  typically. You typically have to be told that they

         16  must do it. They must maintain adequate wetting.

         17  That is what a contractor ends up being forced to

         18  do, only when he gets faced with dust issues.

         19                 As last analogy, I was involved with

         20  the dust problems in Midtown Manhattan when the

         21  Coliseum came down, and the dust problems. And once

         22  again, it was a wetting issue. The fact of the

         23  matter is the contractor would not wet adequately.

         24                 Jack talked about complete wetting.

         25  In order to get complete wetting, it takes a lot.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Since you were

          4  on the previous panel, I just have one question.

          5                 Assuming we could do what would count

          6  as reasonable wetting at the Ground Zero site, would

          7  it still be desirable to use sealed containers?

          8                 And, also, is there any technical

          9  reason why going forward we cannot at this point

         10  begin to use sealed containers? And that includes

         11  financial? Is that something that's doable?

         12                 DR. FELDSCHER: From a construction

         13  standpoint, the problem with sealed containers is

         14  loading of them. They're harder to load, that makes

         15  loading slower, it makes it more expensive. That's

         16  going to be the limitation for a contractor and

         17  monetary standpoint of using sealed containers. I

         18  can guarantee you that is what you'll be told.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: A hundred

         20  percent more expense, 20 percent, roughly?

         21                 DR. FELDSCHER: I'd probably say on

         22  the waste side, just the waste side, not just in

         23  general, I would say you are probably talking about

         24  probably a 20 to 40 percent increase potentially in

         25  a cost of loading, of the loading operation cost.
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          2  So, you're definitely going to see an increase in

          3  cost, absolutely, if you are using sealed

          4  containers. If you do the adequate wetting at the

          5  site, and it is sufficiently wet, driving down the

          6  street at a reasonable rate of speed with a complete

          7  cover, you should not see the dust that you're

          8  seeing now.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: The problem is

         10  it has not been adequately wetted when it leaves?

         11                 DR. FELDSCHER: I can almost guarantee

         12  that it's not sufficiently wet, that will prevent

         13  dust from flying off the truck as it goes down the

         14  street.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 DR. FELDSCHER: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Joel, you're up.

         19                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Thank you very much

         20  for your patience.

         21                 I'm Joel Kupferman, from the New York

         22  Environmental Law and Justice Project, and we're the

         23  group that went out and grabbed a sample not more

         24  than four or five blocks from here and we came up

         25  with five percent asbestos, 90 percent fiberglass.
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          2                 We've been talking to the PBA,

          3  firefighters union, marshals in front of the Federal

          4  Court House, tenants groups, BMCC, group after

          5  group, and I think the problem here is that people

          6  don't trust government anymore, okay? I think part

          7  of the problem is, and I'm going to make this really

          8  short, is no one went out to the top of the EPA

          9  building, or from Albany, and talked to the people

         10  who are on the street. And I just really think it's

         11  a lack of enforcement, unequal treatment, and

         12  misinformation.

         13                 We were told today that there is no

         14  -- and there is a sheet that you were handed --

         15  that there was no problem at the School at PS 89.

         16  This is the chart. It was done by ATC for the

         17  school, okay? The same dates that they showed you

         18  that said no problem, this is particulates, 40 and

         19  65, and it shows that it's low, and as it goes up in

         20  date it exceeds levels, okay, that the feds say is

         21  dangerous. Okay?

         22                 The Board of Education and the City

         23  Health Department told people that the problem with

         24  this is that there might have been a problem with

         25  the equipment, or if you average out the seven days,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            420

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  it's below level, okay? You're getting

          3  misinformation. If you guys are getting hard on

          4  these guys that are giving the information, we're

          5  going to be here four months from now, six months

          6  from now.

          7                 When it comes to unequal treatment, a

          8  building that made the front page of the Washington

          9  Post, that made the front page of the Washington

         10  Post is 105 Duane Street. The sample, using a

         11  microvacuum system, it came up with 550 times the

         12  level that's considered safe, okay?

         13                 The Department of Health and EPA said

         14  this is basically voodoo science, we do not use this

         15  method, okay?

         16                 Now we go a few weeks later and we do

         17  another FOIL request, and that's my expertise is

         18  getting information, okay? This is the federal

         19  government hiring a contractor, certified engineer.

         20  What do they use to test their own building which

         21  they cleaned up? Vacuum system, okay.

         22                 So, every time we did tests we found

         23  information. And when we found information that

         24  something exceeded these levels, the federal

         25  government and the City Health Department, DEP was
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          2  really good at doing spin and saying it's either a

          3  spike, there's no problems. And I think everyone

          4  here wants to know why the hell did they get a

          5  clean-up, okay, and the rest of us don't.

          6                 And I want to ask you guys also, were

          7  you informed by the State Health Department and the

          8  City Health Department that when they did monitoring

          9  down the hallway down here, the monitors were

         10  blocked, it was called overload. And they didn't do

         11  any more testing.

         12                 Were you ever informed that we might

         13  be in a contaminated building right now?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I wasn't

         15  informed.

         16                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Okay. A leading

         17  question anyway.

         18                 Then also we went to a Department of

         19  Health meeting, and with informing tenants that

         20  there was no exceedences of any of the federal

         21  levels. They said there was no exceedences.

         22                 This is what we just got off of the

         23  EPA site, okay? You've got benzene levels, carbon

         24  monoxide, dioxin, 12 samples of dust in Southern

         25  High School, we have dust, lead and other problems.
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          2  But the Department of Health is still going around

          3  telling people that these figures don't exist, okay?

          4  I think we have a problem here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have all

          6  of this information in some concise --

          7                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Yes, I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Way that we

          9  could put it on the record?

         10                 MR. KUPFERMAN: One minute.

         11                 They also told you that particulates

         12  in the beginning weren't bad for the first three,

         13  four months. It took us one second, like two minutes

         14  to find this. This is from Mercer Review Magazine

         15  (phonetic). It said that air pollution exposure may

         16  trigger myocardial infarction, heart attacks. So

         17  much for temporary inconvenience, okay?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would very

         19  much appreciate a document that could spell all this

         20  out for us that we could enter into the record and

         21  be part of our follow-up.

         22                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Okay. One more thing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is really

         24  going to have to be the last thing.

         25                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Excuse me?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This will be

          3  your last point.

          4                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Okay.

          5                 They also said they weren't sure what

          6  materials were in the World Trade Center. This is

          7  New York State DEP's manifested waste summary. We

          8  found 3,800 pounds were generated from the World

          9  Trade Center in 1998, okay? Which meant they knew

         10  all along what was in there, what should have been

         11  in there, and now they're telling us that it's not.

         12  Mugdan, Chief Counsel for the EPA in this region

         13  said that dust goes through windows, goes through

         14  open windows or closed windows. So, I think you've

         15  been a little bamboozled about this whole idea of

         16  indoor and outdoor pollution.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's why we

         18  have you.

         19                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Well, just putting

         20  that aside, I think it's really important that all

         21  of the information you are getting from the

         22  Department of Health should really be looked at. And

         23  I just want to say one more thing.

         24                 Kimberly and I really worked on the

         25  West Nile Virus problem with the whole West Nile --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MR. KUPFERMAN: We pushed EPA and the

          4  DEC, who is here now, to do an investigation and

          5  they fined the company $1 million for not offering

          6  enough protection. We're still in Workers Comp

          7  hearings with those guys who are sick, but the City

          8  Health Department put out a bid for spraying again,

          9  and they went to hire the same company, until we

         10  looked in the contract, and the contract said you

         11  couldn't hire people before -- you know, you can't

         12  hire the same people that violated the contract.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's a different

         14  issue.

         15                 MR. KUPFERMAN: So, all of a sudden

         16  they're telling you that all of these companies

         17  can't do anything. Under the contract law you could

         18  specify that they used low fuel --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here's what we

         20  need: We need you to be as forthcoming with the

         21  information, because we've had the agencies here,

         22  they've given us reams of paper and power point

         23  presentations about how they're right and they got

         24  it all. So, we need from you, and to the extent that

         25  you could provide it to us, some kind of concise
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          2  document that can lay this out for us so that we can

          3  challenge them with it, and it would be my pleasure

          4  to do that.

          5                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thanks very

          7  much for your testimony. We're really grateful for

          8  your being here, and thank you for your patience.

          9                 MR. KUPFERMAN: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: BMCC. Oh, no,

         11  pardon me. Rich Muller is going to give us 30

         12  seconds, or whatever he said he was going to do.

         13  Whatever it takes.

         14                 MR. MULLER: Thank you, Chairperson.

         15  You have the Borough President's written testimony.

         16  The essence of it is that she appreciates your

         17  holding this hearing, that clearly the issue is

         18  confidence in government, and the confidence for

         19  people to return downtown and feel that it's safe.

         20                 The two fundamental issues remaining

         21  are the interior spaces, private property, and the

         22  barge operation, which have been extensively

         23  discussed.

         24                 She supports the resolution in front

         25  of the Council.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 MR. MULLER: And looking forward

          4  again, the mitigations, in terms of air quality,

          5  low-sulfur fuel, articulate capture, everything that

          6  can be done to keep what comes out of those trucks

          7  and construction vehicles at a minimum.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Muller.

         11                 Thank you very much, and please give

         12  our best regards to the Borough President. She

         13  served here, as everyone knows, with great

         14  distinction on the Council, and we value her

         15  partnership on this issue, and we'll be working very

         16  closely together. So, please give her our best, and

         17  thank you very much for your patience.

         18                 Okay, thank you, Mr. Muller.

         19                 BMCC. As a teacher in CUNY, I welcome

         20  you all here. I want to --

         21                 DR. RAUSHER: Sometimes we feel as

         22  though the two-year college is left for the last, I

         23  hope that's not why we're last. But better last than

         24  not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: First of all,
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          2  there is one more panel that will follow you, but

          3  I'd like to think that we saved the best for last.

          4                 DR. RAUSHER: There you go.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 Please identify yourself for the

          8  record.

          9                 DR. RAUSHER: I'm Dr. Shirley Rausher.

         10  I'm a teaching faculty person at Borough of

         11  Manhattan Community College. I'm not here speaking

         12  with expertise, I'm here speaking as someone who has

         13  been experiencing firsthand the problems down in

         14  this area.

         15                 My doctorate is in child development,

         16  and, of course, I have a concern from that point of

         17  view of children exposed to lead and all the other

         18  things we're talking about. We know of the cognitive

         19  consequences, that nobody I've heard mention here

         20  yet today, although I've only been here since three,

         21  as well as emotional and physical. But those are

         22  long-term consequences, and we've been concerned

         23  about lead certainly poisoning for a long time about

         24  all of that.

         25                 I also am on the Professional Staff
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          2  Congress Legislative Committee, Women's City Club,

          3  where we had Gale Brewer speaking earlier, and

          4  that's why I haven't been here since before three.

          5                 At BMCC we have over 17,000 students,

          6  all of whom represent almost every minority you can

          7  think of, multi-cultural, multi-lingual population

          8  of this City and its boroughs. We're right here at

          9  199 Chambers Street and West Street for those who

         10  might not be familiar with that. We were the first

         11  educational institution to come into the area and go

         12  back into school October 1st, before the other

         13  schools did. Because I was to teach that same

         14  morning that WTC events took place at Fiterman

         15  Building, for three weeks I was not teaching. And,

         16  so, temporary shelters, temporary teaching buildings

         17  were put up, on West Street, of all places, right

         18  across from the dumps, right across from our barge

         19  dump, which is behind Stuyvesant and right across

         20  the street, and you know where the windows faced?

         21  Onto the barge.

         22                 Whether windows were open or closed,

         23  we found out PSC, the Union, got our own NYOSH

         24  representative people to come in. Dave Newman, who

         25  was to have testified and had to leave, and who came
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          2  up with a lengthy document that indicated, that he

          3  told us informally, that those temporaries have to

          4  go, that there is no way that the dust can't get in,

          5  windows opened or closed, as was just stated. The

          6  buildings themselves are not solid buildings, the

          7  way the other buildings are, that when they tested

          8  they found numerous times that the levels were much

          9  higher than acceptable levels in those temporaries.

         10  We feel that the one thing that has to be done is

         11  the barges must be removed, or the idea that I've

         12  heard here for the first time of the containers,

         13  things put into concealed containers, and then

         14  brought to be put on barges, is, frankly, appealing

         15  to me. I can't speak for the others.

         16                 Many of my students, and we're going

         17  to be hearing from them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, we would

         19  like to hear from them.

         20                 DR. RAUSHER: Okay. Very briefly, I

         21  will just state that many of my students dropped out

         22  during those first few weeks. Many of us had serious

         23  flu-like symptoms for the first few weeks. I really

         24  thought I had the flu, went home, and suddenly over

         25  the weekend it was fine, until I came back in again

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            430

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  and we had it all over again.

          3                 I have had students with asthma, I

          4  have one right now who said he has not had asthmatic

          5  symptoms since he was five, he has them again.

          6  Serious consequences to that, and I really would

          7  like to turn it to the student now, to hear from him

          8  directly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         10  much. I appreciate it.

         11                 Wayne, right?

         12                 MR. PARCHEMAN: Wayne Parcheman.

         13  Editor of Voice of the Voiceless, Borough of

         14  Manhattan Community College. This is the school

         15  newspaper, I just wanted to show you a sample.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         17                 MR. PARCHEMAN: Thank you very much,

         18  Councilman Gennaro. I wanted to say I commend you,

         19  this Committee you are running here today has been

         20  exemplary, in the sense that you went straight to

         21  the point, and to Mr. Gerson, who has put me on his

         22  advisory panel in his Lower Economic Development

         23  Committee, and I appreciate that. Both of you have

         24  shown a commitment to your constituents, a commit to

         25  City, as service to the City, and I appreciate that.
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          2  And thank you for having me here today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please don't

          4  forget Council Member Quinn, okay?

          5                 MR. PARCHEMAN: Oh, yes, definitely.

          6  Definitely Council Member Quinn, Councilwoman Quinn.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: We're going to

          8  have our first meeting upcoming in the first week or

          9  so, you'll be contacted.

         10                 MR. PARCHEMAN: Thank you, sir. I

         11  appreciate that. I would like to thank also the

         12  parents, and the PTA at Stuyvesant High School.

         13  They've been very forthcoming and to form a

         14  coalition along with BMCC students and PSC, as you

         15  know, you're a PSC person yourself.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         17                 MR. PARCHEMAN: I would like to thank

         18  you for your commitment to students.

         19                 I just quickly would like to speak

         20  about things that I've heard today, and also to

         21  touch upon what Dr. Rausher has talked about.

         22                 BMCC, as Dr. Rausher has talked

         23  about, was the first institution open around Ground

         24  Zero October the 1st. About 16,000 students

         25  returned, about 600 had dropped from attendance.
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          2                 From the very first week that we came

          3  back, we were told, spoke before another committee

          4  meeting, that at first we were to enter the school

          5  from the back building. I wish I could use that map

          6  to show you, but it's the North Moore Street

          7  entrance, and at that time we were also given masks,

          8  along with the faculty and the other staff of BMCC,

          9  the welcome was more or less comforting, but, yet,

         10  the smell of toxins was still in the air. The smell

         11  of toxins basically covered the whole school.

         12                 I, myself, I'm not going to lie to

         13  you, my wife, if she was here today she would tell

         14  you, ever since then I have been basically coughing

         15  to non-stop, and I do plan to see my doctor pretty

         16  soon.

         17                 I also have symptoms where I drool,

         18  basically, in my sleep. Which I've never done

         19  before. I still have this feeling like, I'm not

         20  going to say metal, but particles launched within my

         21  lungs.

         22                 My concern is that today the DEP,

         23  Department of Health and the OEM have shown that

         24  findings that they have contradict the findings that

         25  the Board of Education has come up with and the PTA
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          2  people have come up with, and I'm very concerned

          3  because I feel that there is this contradiction in

          4  our findings and measurements and uses of

          5  methodology, then obviously there should be a better

          6  method in testing.

          7                 One of my classes are right across

          8  from the barges. Not only are the barges a

          9  disturbing factor, it's basically a reminder of

         10  every day life of what happened on 9/11. A lot of

         11  students cannot function, a lot of students, as Dr.

         12  Rausher said, have come up sick. I've had people on

         13  my staff at Voice of the Voiceless who have

         14  basically quit school because they couldn't take it.

         15                 My office alone is built, my office

         16  is behind classrooms that were built in the student

         17  developmental hall, which had clear ventilation, but

         18  there's no more ventilation because these classes

         19  block that ventilation.

         20                 You could feel the stuffiness in the

         21  room, and you could also feel the stuffiness outside

         22  of the room.

         23                 All I would like to say is that, I've

         24  come up with a three-point action plan that I plan

         25  to pass along to students, and the first part of the
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          2  plan is called "movement," where we get people

          3  together, grassroots organizations of students, of

          4  parents, of faculty teachers and our Councilpeople,

          5  and we move to inform people of these findings,

          6  inform people what we heard of today, and get them

          7  to understand that they must be informed about their

          8  environment.

          9                 The other action plan is reaction. We

         10  must get a reaction from the different agencies that

         11  handle these particular studies and find out what

         12  are they going to do in order to either give us a

         13  plan of whether or not they feel that we should

         14  evacuate the area, as far as students, or should

         15  there be a better way of cleaning than they are

         16  doing so far.

         17                 And then the third action plan is

         18  accountability.

         19                 We must hold those who are

         20  accountable, basically who have the specific

         21  information and have not been forthright truthful.

         22  Because as I've said today, we've seen, Mr. Nadler,

         23  Congressman Nadler said that there is enough

         24  information here to put New York State and America

         25  as a whole in litigation for years to come. And
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          2  people will use this information today to basically

          3  use that as a form of basis to have that litigation,

          4  and I wouldn't blame them if they did. So somebody

          5  should be held accountable.

          6                 And another thing I would like to

          7  say, I appreciate you having given me the

          8  opportunity to talk, given Dr. Rausher the

          9  opportunity to talk, and everybody else, I'd like to

         10  say thank you very much. I have to go, I have a

         11  pregnant wife who has been waiting for three hours,

         12  waiting for me to pick her up from work, but she's

         13  been patient, because she knows I'm passionate about

         14  my school. So, thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Wayne. Thank you so much for your great service, and

         17  I'm glad that you're on the task force, and Alan

         18  certainly made a great choice in putting you on it.

         19  And it's a proud moment for me as a teacher at CUNY

         20  to see one of our students making such a positive

         21  contribution, and thank you very much for your good

         22  service.

         23                 MR. PARCHEMAN: They don't pay our

         24  teachers enough, I'll be honest with you.

         25                 MR. GENNARO: Yes. I know a little bit
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          2  about that.

          3                 MR. PARCHEMAN: From elementary,

          4  teachers have always been my influence.

          5                 MR. GENNARO: Let's start with CUNY

          6  teachers first, okay? Let's start with that.

          7                 MR. PARCHEMAN: I mean, the elementary

          8  teachers, they deserve a lot of credit too. So, they

          9  don't pay enough. But Mr. Gerson is a great man who

         10  is making some good things happen, along with

         11  yourself, sir. So, you have a nice day now. And

         12  Councilwoman Quinn, have a nice day.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I look forward

         14  to working with you.

         15                 MR. PARCHEMAN: Thank you, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Wayne.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: And all the

         19  best to you and your wife.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead.

         21                 MS. FLYNN: Hi. I'm Kimberly Flynn.

         22  I'm with the New York Environmental Law and Justice

         23  Project, and I'm proud to say that I attended CUNY

         24  Grad for eight years.

         25                 I guess what I want to do is I want
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          2  to address myself to, you know, Joel's comments

          3  about people's lack of trust in government, and I

          4  want to also remind everyone of Congressman Nadler's

          5  statement, that the misstatements, mishandling and

          6  mischaracterization of risks from the environmental

          7  hazards at the World Trade Center has provoked a

          8  full-blown crisis in public confidence and it's one

          9  that we can ill-afford at this moment.

         10                 I just want to make a few points

         11  about the urgency and importance of proper risk

         12  communications to New Yorkers who live in Lower

         13  Manhattan, and about the fact that by failing to

         14  provide accurate, adequate and timely risk

         15  communications our agencies have squandered the

         16  public's trust.

         17                 And I would just, you know, to just

         18  name three principles, which I think the Health

         19  Department would do well to attend to.

         20                 In a crisis, people will not forgive

         21  the government for failing to provide information

         22  that would have helped them. In a crisis, people

         23  should be treated not like children, but like the

         24  capable partners that they are, and that all New

         25  Yorkers have proven themselves to be in the wake of
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          2  these terrible attacks. And, finally, accurate and

          3  timely information breeds confidence, stonewalling

          4  breeds panic.

          5                 You know, I could go on and on and

          6  characterize all of the various alibis that we've

          7  heard from our agencies as to why they have failed

          8  to comprehend the reasons the people are getting

          9  sick.

         10                 We hear again and again that there is

         11  this strange discrepancy between their data and the

         12  risks as they characterize them, and then these

         13  phenomena that are erupting in the populous of all

         14  of these symptoms.

         15                 And, you know, I think that probably

         16  a high point, or the low point, rather, in terms of

         17  adequate risk communications was the New York City

         18  Health Department's public advisory where they

         19  advised that pregnant women and young children do

         20  not need to take any additional precautions

         21  additional to closing your windows when the fumes

         22  are bad. You know, these are grossly inadequate and

         23  scientifically unsound risk communications.

         24                 You know, the alibis we've heard, I

         25  mean at one point we actually heard Kathy Callahan
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          2  and others at EPA claim that EPA did not have a

          3  mission to protect human health, and, of course, the

          4  joke was in New York at that point that that was a

          5  moment of rare honesty.

          6                 So, I'm going to quickly try to wrap

          7  up. What we want to do is we want to endorse NRDC's

          8  call for a New York City Committee of Environmental

          9  Science and Health Advisors that would work in

         10  conjunction with DOH, in assisting City officials,

         11  in evaluating information, and communicating it to

         12  the public during any future environmental health

         13  emergencies. And, you know, in our experience with

         14  West Nile spraying and our experience with the World

         15  Trade Center aftermath, I guess what Joel and I

         16  would finally say is that we even wonder if our

         17  Health Department has the environmental competence

         18  to mount an adequate response to an environmental

         19  health emergency.

         20                 And since we are in the City, as a

         21  number of people have discussed, we're in the City

         22  that has many, many nationally recognized

         23  environmental health experts. They really should be

         24  having a say, especially in terms of how risk is

         25  characterized to the populous, and we need to get
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          2  the benefit of their expertise.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much. I'm very grateful for your testimony and for

          5  helping us out here.

          6                 Are there any questions for the

          7  witnesses?

          8                 Alan, any questions for the

          9  witnesses?

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Just to thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, anyone who

         16  remains who wishes to testify will form the last

         17  panel.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

         19  the final panel congregates, let me take the

         20  opportunity to make up for an earlier omission, and

         21  I think we all want to acknowledge the input of the

         22  staff which went into the preparation of today's

         23  hearing, and I'm going to acknowledge Elisa Batson

         24  who is still here with us, and who has worked with

         25  me, as well as Jonathan Greenberg, Director of
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          2  Policy for Lower Manhattan Redevelopment, and Robin

          3  Forest, my Deputy Chief of Staff, for working

          4  together, and I'm sure you have folks you want to

          5  call.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, by all

          7  means. I have Ami Litman. A guy who spent a lot of

          8  time on the phone with me last week, a lot of

          9  yelling and screaming, but we seem to have come to a

         10  very good conclusion here.

         11                 Our counsel, Alison Rosen, had to

         12  leave earlier. It was kind of a sad moment, this

         13  being her last hearing, you know, with us here, and

         14  all the other good staff, who have worked so hard,

         15  and as a former staff member myself for many years,

         16  it's nice to see them get the recognition that they

         17  deserve and I'm happy to do that.

         18                 Council Member Quinn.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And I'll just

         20  add from the Health Committee side, beyond her work

         21  swearing and/or affirming everyone in today, the

         22  Counsel to the Health Committee, Judith MacFarlane

         23  and the Legislative Analyst to the Health Committee,

         24  who I think is still here, if not she probably just,

         25  just left, Chris Winward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 I would like to say that Judith is

          5  not ordinarily known for her swearing, not

          6  ordinarily known for that. And, so, I would like

          7  Judith to proceed with the oath ritual.

          8                 MS. MACFARLANE: Do you swear or

          9  affirm that the testimony you are about to give is

         10  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MS. PLATT: I do.

         12                 MR. BARTLETT: I do:

         13                 MS. ORKIN: I do.

         14                 MR. AMERUSO: I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         16  much. And we would like to ask each of you, I guess,

         17  maybe starting this way and going that way, to

         18  identify yourself for the record and proceed with

         19  your testimony and then once your testimony is

         20  received from all four of you, if we have questions

         21  we'll come forward with those questions.

         22                 And, so, please identify yourself for

         23  the record, and proceed with your testimony.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         25  speak right into the mic.
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          2                 MS. PLATT: Okay. Is this okay?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's great.

          4                 MS. PLATT: That's too loud.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's okay.

          6                 MS. PLATT: It's okay?

          7                 I'm going to refer to testimony

          8  that's been given and briefly. My concern is that I

          9  live on 105 Duane Street, and we've had extensive

         10  experience with the DEP and the DOH, and they have

         11  actually been obstructive to our efforts to get a

         12  good cleaning.

         13                 Joel Kupferman referred to the

         14  microvac sample, our management in a memo to the

         15  tenants in my building was able to quote the DEP

         16  referring to wipe sampling and/or microvacuum

         17  sampling as, quote, "not recognized methods of

         18  asbestos sampling and should not be used."

         19                 This was this test that found 550,000

         20  structures of asbestos per square centimeter. That's

         21  high, in a tenth floor duct. Expected background

         22  would have been 1,000.

         23                 Now, it looked like we were lucky,

         24  because our management hired a duct cleaning

         25  company, but when we hired an engineer to monitor
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          2  that duct cleaning company we found that the methods

          3  they were going to use, not enough negative

          4  pressure, they weren't going to segment the system,

          5  would have scattered toxic contaminants throughout

          6  the building. DEP okayed that plan. And then the DOH

          7  didn't understand what our problem is, and in fact

          8  we have a letter from the DOH, signed by Jessica

          9  Leighton, that was distributed by management to

         10  every apartment in my building, just like 400. I

         11  mean, there's special fax sheets, and it's again

         12  referring to that high level. Do the results at 105

         13  Duane Street mean I've been exposed to dangerous --

         14  no, that's not the one. It's headed "weren't the

         15  levels found by tenants' consultant very high?" And

         16  this consultant is Ed Olmsted, he's very well known

         17  and well respected.

         18                 And basically, instead of supporting

         19  tenants when they requested further testing and not

         20  docked, the DOH came up with a letter that basically

         21  attempted to discredit this finding, and they wanted

         22  us to go ahead with the duct cleaning that would

         23  have been dangerous, they didn't care that we had

         24  sheetrock ducts. I don't know if they know -- I'm

         25  living in a hotel now, if the DEP or the DOH is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            445

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL/HEALTH/LOWER MANHATTAN

          2  designated as an agency to do this, I'm never going

          3  home, because my building will never be cleaned.

          4                 The other thing is, the exterior of

          5  my building has been cleaned. I hired Olmsted to do

          6  sampling in my apartment, two months after the

          7  exterior of the building had been cleaned. He wrote

          8  that the exterior of the building needs to be

          9  cleaned.

         10                 I have a notice from management

         11  saying that they had cleaned my heating and air

         12  conditioning system, tests like two months after

         13  that had been done found on a microvac sample,

         14  16,700 structures squared on on the fan coil. Now,

         15  again, if the DEP were to come to my apartment and

         16  do testing, they never would have found that. I

         17  would have run the thing. And presently people are

         18  living in that building.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         20  much for your testimony.

         21                 It's very, very compelling testimony.

         22  I'm glad that we were all here to hear it. I'm glad

         23  that the Regional Administrator of DEC Region II is

         24  here to hear it. I would like to also congratulate

         25  Mary Ellen Chris for staying with us for all these
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          2  eight hours. Thank you.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: You know, for

          4  my past work with Mary Ellen Chris, it is not

          5  surprising. So, we thank you. We did receive

          6  documentation you provided. In the press for time we

          7  couldn't get into the building's specific

          8  questioning, but I will follow up on Monday with a

          9  letter and follow-up communication to the Department

         10  to ascertain why they wrote what they wrote and see

         11  if they will rescind or go back and reconsider.

         12                 MS. PLATT: My guess would be, I don't

         13  know if I'm supposed to respond, but I'm going to.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead.

         15                 MS. PLATT: Is they would say, well,

         16  it didn't matter because the management was going to

         17  clean, but these were not, it was a non-NADCA

         18  (phonetic) certified company.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         20  formal statement? Okay, so we do have it. Okay.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 Please.

         23                 MS. ORKIN: My name is Jenna Orkin,

         24  and until two weeks ago I was a Stuyvesant parent. I

         25  took my child out. He had been absent for four
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          2  weeks, I had the truant police after me, so now he's

          3  someplace else.

          4                 I'm going to try and say things that

          5  have not already been said.

          6                 The barge operation blocks evacuation

          7  in the event of another disaster downtown. Our

          8  students -- I'm speaking as though I was still at

          9  Stuyvesant. Our students will not be able to

         10  evacuate north away from the disaster, but they will

         11  have to go south, towards it. The other problems at

         12  the barge you've heard something about. We've had

         13  particulate matter 2.5 levels that have very often

         14  been higher than at Ground Zero, and in the last two

         15  months they were tested on 23 days, on 11 of those

         16  days which was almost 50 percent they were double

         17  Ground Zero levels.

         18                 Particulate matter 2.5 is not only

         19  the kind that's small enough to penetrate deep into

         20  the lungs and alveoli, but also because it is so

         21  small it has a high surface area to volume ratio,

         22  and this means that the other noxious chemicals

         23  attach to it. Well, we've had some of those other

         24  noxious chemicals, too.

         25                 You've heard about our lead levels.
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          2  Now, when lead has been found in the schools, for

          3  instance, when they test at three representative

          4  places, let's say the north and the east and the

          5  west sides, and they find lead in all three places,

          6  what they do is they clean the three places. But the

          7  whole point of having representative tests is so

          8  that you know that there's general contamination,

          9  and you have to do a general cleaning, but that's

         10  not what they do. They do the minimum.

         11                 We've also had high asbestos. On

         12  November 28th we had over 120 structures, whereas of

         13  course the limit is 70. Now, what was alarming about

         14  that incident was that on that day ATC, which is

         15  doing the testing generally at Stuyvesant for the

         16  interior, it's the Board of Ed's company, did not

         17  find asbestos at any alarming level whatsoever. They

         18  said no asbestos detected, as they always had.

         19                 But the EPA on that same day made a

         20  special call to the parents association to say that

         21  asbestos was above regulation limits. Well, this

         22  does call into question ATC's methods in general.

         23                 We do know that they do not do

         24  aggressive testing in the school, for fear of

         25  spreading it.
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          2                 The reason for the discrepancy on

          3  November 28th, which was an exterior reading, was

          4  that they had not tested for as long a period of

          5  time as EPA. So, they don't do aggressive testing,

          6  they don't test for very long, and these are the

          7  people we're relying on.

          8                 Nor has a full spectrum analysis been

          9  done, but we do know that when many chemicals get

         10  together, or at least two, that the synergistic

         11  effect can be explosive.

         12                 Dr. Stephen Levin at Mount Sinai

         13  tests with people who were smokers and had been

         14  asbestos workers, indeed he discovered that the

         15  effect is not two or three times as bad as being an

         16  asbestos worker or a smoker, it was 80 or 90 times

         17  as bad.

         18                 So, the synergistic effect of

         19  chemicals working together is horrendous.

         20                 Now, how is Stuyvesant protected

         21  against all these toxins and this onslaught? Well,

         22  the ducts to date have not been cleaned. You've

         23  heard before about the million dollar clean-up that

         24  was done at the school. It's true, but the ducts

         25  were not cleaned, and that's absolutely crucial, and
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          2  the Board of Ed refuses adamantly to install HEPA

          3  filters, which are the only kind of filter that

          4  could help us against these toxins.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Next witness. I'm sorry, I don't have

          8  the cards in front of me, but would you state your

          9  name.

         10                 MR. BARTLETT: I'm Paul Bartlett from

         11  the Center for the Biology of Natural Systems,

         12  Queens College. You heard from my director earlier

         13  on the health impacts of the World Trade Center.

         14                 My area of expertise is dispersion,

         15  emission and dispersion of toxins, how they move

         16  through the atmosphere, how they expose populations.

         17                 I generally work on long distance

         18  transport of environmental toxins, dioxins, PCBs,

         19  pesticides, I've worked for -- I'm on a working

         20  committee that offered the International Pops Treaty

         21  that was recently signed and various other

         22  international organizations, Arctic and all that, so

         23  it wasn't surprising to me that the toxins could

         24  cross Broadway, after tracking the dioxins from New

         25  York up to the arctic, which is somewhat obvious.
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